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The com prehensive annual financial report of the St. Tam m any Parish School Board for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, is hereby subm itted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of 
the data, and the com pleteness and fairn ess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with 
the School Board. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all 
m aterial respects and are reported in a m anner designed to present fairly the financial position and 
results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the School Board. All disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the School Board's financial activities 
have been included. 

The com prehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory , 
financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transm ittal letter, the 
School Board's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes 
the general purpose financial statements and the com bining and individual fund and account group 
financial statem ents and schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and 
dem ographic inform ation, generally presented on a m ulti-year basis. 

The School Board is required to undergo an annual single audit in conform ity with the 
provisions of the Single Audit Act, as am ended, and U,S. Office of M anagem ent and Budget 
Circular A-133, _Audits of States. Loc#l Governments and Non-Profit Or_qanizations. Inform ation 
related to this single audit, including the schedule of federal financial assistance, findings and 
recom m endations, and independent auditors' reports on the internal control structure and 
com pliance with applicable laws and regulations, are included in the single audit section of this 
report. 

This report includes all funds, account groups and activities for which the School Board 
exercises financial accountability. The School Board is a legislative body authorized to govern the 
public education system of St. Tam m any Parish, Louisiana. The School System is governed by a 
fifteen-m em ber board with each mem ber serving a concurrent four year term . The current board 
is in the first year of its four-year term . It is the responsibility of the School Board to m ake public 
education available to the residents of St. Tam m any Parish, including instructional personnel, 
instructional facilities, adm inistrative support, business services, operation and m aintenance 
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and bus transportation. The School Board provides a full range of public education services 
appropriate to grade tevels ranging from pre-kindergarten through grade 12. These include regular 
and enriched academ ic education, special education for disabled children and vocational education. 
The school system has a current enrollm ent of approxim ately 32,600 pupils. 

The School Board is authorized to establish public schools as it deem s necessary, to provide 
adequate school facilities for the children of the parish, to determ ine the num ber of teachers to be 
em ployed and to determ ine the local supplement to their salaries. Accordingly, since the School 
Board m em bers are elected by the public and have decision-m aking authority, the power to 
designate m anagem ent, the ability te significantly influence operations and prim ary 
accountability for financial m atters, the School Board is not included in any other 
governm ental reporting entity. 

ECO NO M IC CO NDITIO N AND O UTLOOK 

St. Tammany Parish is one of the southeastern parishes (counties) of Louisiana and covers 
an area of 1,141 square m iles. It is located directly north of New O rleans on the north shore of 
Lake Pontchartrain and has been ranked as one of the fastest growth areas in the United States. 
St. Tam m any was the fastest growing parish in Louisiana during the 1970s and the 1980s and, thus 
far, in the 1990s. The population has alm ost tripled since 1970 and today's population of 183,000 
is an increase of 27% over 1990's population. If the growt h in population continues at its current 
rate, it is estim ated that the population will be approaching 211,000 by the year 2002. St. Tam m any 
has experienced a 20% growt h rate over the last five years and there are m ore than 65,000 
households in the parish and this num ber is expected to increase to m ore than 76,000 by 2002. 

The econom y of St. Tam m any Parish is prim arily residential oriented, which has brought an 
influx of retail and service establishm ents, offices and shopping centers. However, there is a 
unique blend of residents em ployed in a variety of diverse industries ranging from agriculture to 
space-age technology. The parish currently has a 3.2 percent unem ploym ent rate as 
com pared to a statew ide rate of 5.1 percent and a national rate of 4.7 percent. Its per capita 
personal income of $24,224 ranks first in the State whose average is $20,458, with the national 
average being $25,288. The m edian household effective buying incom e in the parish in 1998 was 
$37,317 compared to a state rate of $28,939 and a national rate of $35,377. The value of single- 
family homes in 1997 averaged $112,000 in the eastern section of the parish and $167,900 in the 
western section. Total retail sales for 1998 were in excess of $1.88 billion and St. Tam m any Parish 
is ranked num ber one in the State in retail trade em ploym ent. The assessed value of residential 
and com m ercial property has increased by 3.2 percent over the previous year. 

According to University of New O rleans econom ist, Dr. Tim othy Ryan, "The econom y of St. 
Tam m any Parish is actually growing faster than the population. St. Tam m any has the state's 
highest per capita incom e, lowest poverty rate, highest median hom e prices and second highest 
m edian household incom e." The num ber of businesses rose 34% between 1990 and 1995, 
earnings rose 60.7% and em ployment rose 35.2%  According to Dr. Ryan, 27% of the households 
of St. Tam many have incomes over $50,000 and about 23% of the population has a bachelor's 
degree or better. 
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It is expected that as a result of the continuing favorable econom ic indicators, St. Tam m any's 
population will continue to increase and that construction of both hom es and retail establishm ents 
will lead the econom y. At present, St. Tam m any is issuing m ore than half of all building perm its in 

the metropolitan New Orleans area. Recent job growth can be attributed considerably to home 
building. Typically, there is one permanent job created for every two-thirds of a house built. 

The com m ercial m arket in St. Tam m any has followed the residential m arket. The average 
occupancy for retail centers is 95%  and office occupancy is over 90% . The com m ercial m arket is 
as active as it has been in the past ten years. Following the boom in residential construction, 
shopping center developers have entered the market. Major retail facilities, as well as strip centers, 
are approaching full occupancy and m ost are pre-leased prior to construction, 

Econom ic indicators throughout the parish continue to reflect gains and St. Tam m any Parish 
continues to enjoy an expanding economy driven by the retail sales and services establishments. 
The projected population growt h is indicative of further growt h in retail sales and continues to drive 
major construction projects for grocery stores, building supply stores, furniture stores, drug stores, 
general m erchandise stores and other consum er oriented businesses. The expansion of the retail 
sales and serv ices establishm ents, coupled with the increasing growth in hom e construction, 
prom ises econom ic boosts in both sales and property taxes. 

St. Tam many Parish's economy is also being driven by the tourism industry. The parish ranks 
ninth in the state in tourism related revenue having generated $125 m illion in 1998. This is m ore 
than three times the $38 million received in 1987 and is a twenty-five percent increase in the past 
five years. It is estim ated by the Louisiana Departm ent of Culture, Recreation and Tourism that 
1,200 jobs are created in St. Tammany Parish by tourism spending. Since Slidell, in the eastern 
part of the parish, is the junction site of three interstate highways and three federal highways, 
sufficient vehicular traffic exists to provide a continuing source of potential tourists. 

The St. Tammany Parish Economic Development Foundation (STEDF) is playing a major 
role in coordinating w ith other regional econom ic developm ent organizations to target key 
com m ercial and industrial interest for future developm ent. STEDF is participating with the 
Partners for Stennis Group, consisting of com m unity leaders from M ississippi and Louisiana, 
to m arket the former Army Am m unition Plant, which closed in 1992, at M ississippi's Stennis Space 
Center. Nearly tw o m illion square feet are available and approxim ately 65%  of all future em ployees 
are expected to reside in St. Tam m any Parish. STEDF is also coordinating w ith M etroVision and 
the Florida Parishes Econom ic Developm ent Association to target key com m ercial and industrial 
interest for future developm ent. Additionally, STEDF is working with the Cham bers of Com m erce 
to encourage the local m unicipalities and the parish governm ent to cooperate and coordinate their 
activities in the m atters of planning and zoning. 

This population growt h and econom ic expansion present both opportunities and challenges 
for the School Board in the com ing years. As m entioned elsewhere in this letter, the School Board 
has initiated the first phase of its Long-Range Plan to provide the capital facilities necessary for an 
expanding school system . However, since econom ic expansion usually trails population growt h 
and the related increase in dem and for current resources, the School Board will continue to explore 
m ethods to finance both the anticipated increases in dem and for current operating expenditures 
and the need to provide the additional capital facilities required for a continuously expanding school 
system . 
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M AJO R INITIATIVES 

The Partnerships in Education (Adopt-A-School), begun in fiscal year 1989, continues to 
expand with all schools participating with at least one area business to share resources in support 
of public education. The businesses are recruited to provide a long-term com m itm ent to furnish 
resource speakers, tutors, internships and sponsorships and to m ake donations of m aterials, 
supplies, equipm ent, and, in som e instances, monetary assistance. The business com m unity has 
shown its overwhelm ing support for the program . The area's cham bers of com m erce and business 
councils continue to coordinate efforts and to provide assistance. It is our goal to continue to have 
all schools in partnership with at least one business. 

Currently, the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS) has accredited a 
twenty-three elementary, eight middle, fourteen junior high and seven high schools. 

The Parent Involvement Program is utilized in every school in the system . The goal is to 
involve parents in the child's education in whatever capacity the parents offer (first aid assistant, 
library aide, classroom tutor, parenting workshop, etc.). In fiscal 1999, more than 242,000 hours 
were donated by parent volunteers. 

O n June 10, 1999, the School Board adopted a Strategic Plan entitled "Reaching Even 
Higher". Its purpose is to identify the m ost vital issues facing the school system during the next 
three to five years and to develop strategies to address these issues. The Plan is designed to be 
a dynam ic guide that is flexible and responsive to critical changes as circum stances m ay warrant. 
The Plan focuses on student achievement and serves as a blueprint for the school system 's efforts 
to support school im provement by linking funding decisions, staffi ng requirem ents and professional 
developm ent opportunities. These elem ents of school im provem ent have now been m ade a part 
of each principal's job performance evaluation and professional growth plans. 

The Plan is the result of hundreds of hours being provided by educators, parents, students, 
business leaders and representatives of com m unity service organizations. The School Board 
recognizes that a prim ary strength of this schooi system is active com m unity involvement and that 
the collective vision and beliefs of the com m unity are essential in the process of planning for the 
future. The general public was given the opportunity to provide input into the Plan through an 
extensive telephone survey conducted by Southern M edia and Opinion Research. The survey was 
intended to gauge the general public's opinion of the school system and to solicit ideas for the 
education of the students. Public m eetings were held throughout the process to allow for those 
interested to review the data collected and to provide input to the Plan as it was being developed. 
Additionally, the presence of representatives of the press at all m eetings ensured that extensive 
coverage would keep the public inform ed as the Plan was being developed. 

Progress reports on the Plan will be m ade sem iannually at m eetings of the School Board to 
determine the status of the goals and objectives established by the Plan and to revise and update 
any part of the Plan as m ay be required. In this m anner the Plan will becom e a living docum ent 
changing as necessary and always reaching for the future. 

During fiscal year 1997, the School Board form ed an Instructional Technology Com m ittee, 
consisting of parents, com m unity leaders, teachers, and adm inistrators, whose m ission was to 
develop a world-class and nationally recognized instructional technology program which prom otes 
significant im provem ents in the learning and teaching process in all schools of the St. Tam m any 
Parish School System . The School Board intends to develop responsible lifelong learners w ho are 
able to achieve and excel in a global society of continuing technological advancem ent. As such, 
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the school system will invest in state-of-the-art equipment and services, ensure teacher and staff 
developm ent opportunities, and continuously m aintain and upgrade the technology base. 

In fiscal year 1998, the St. Tam m any Parish School Board began an aggressive technology 
m provem ent program by adopting the following three goals: 

To update existing electrical wiring and to identify, purchase and install equipment 
and software need to em power students to use technology as a too~ for effective 
com m unication, personal productivity, and life long learning. 

2. To em power teachers, m edia specialists and staff to effectively use technology to 
enhance instruction, increase productivity, and facilitate their own life long learning. 

3. To provide a technologically rich environm ent at all schools by installing local area 
networks, a wide area network and access to the Internet. 

During the 1998 fiscal year, twenty-five schools were electronically rewired to accom m odate 
the new technology, equipment was purchased and installed in 405 classroom s, eight labs with 832 
com puters were installed, 16 com puters and their related software for student research were 
purchased at four libraries, equipm ent for student video production was installed and 24 trainers 
were trained so that they could instruct 369 educators on the new technology and the integration 
of the Internet into the curriculum to im prove student achievem ent. 

All of this resulted in approximately 19,000 students gaining access to the Internet for 
research, classroom projects and telecommunication activities across the curriculum. 

During the 1998-99 school year, 579 teachers received 8,781 training contact hours related 
to integrating instructional technology into the classroom . Approxim ately 1,600 new m ulti-m edia 
com puters and 1,700 softw are titles were purchased. The student/com puter ratio was reduced to 
approxim ately 7 to 1. 

During the 1999 fiscal year, the School Board appropriated $1 million from the General Fund 
for technology. Additionally, the school system was awarded a $865,000 technology grant and a 
$31,000 8G grant from the State of Louisiana, and a $200,000 federal grant. 

During fiscal 2000, the school system w ill continue to purchase equipm ent and software to 
effectively integrate instructional technology into the classroom curriculum. In addition, $2 million 
in bond proceeds will be spent in renovating and equipping the old M andeville Kindergarten facilities 
into the Instructional Technology Center. W hen com pleted, this 23,000 square foot facility will be 
a year-round, state-of-the-art teacher training center. It will have a W indows com puter lab, a M ac 
com puter lab, a technology rich classroom , a professional developm ent center, a distance learning 
classroom w ith com pressed video and satellite signals, a video production studio, and a 450 seat 
auditorium w ith teleconferencing and m ulti-m edia presentation capabilities. 

During fiscal 1999, the Data Processing Department's continued to provide expertise for the 
developm ent and support for the implementation of the school system 's technology plan. M em bers 
of the Department's staff served as network and technology resources at both the school and the 
parish levels assisting the schools in im plementing their school specific technology plan. The Data 
Processing Departm ent perform ed the engineering, prepared specifications, and m anaged the 
installation and im plem entation of the individual schools' network wiring requirem ents. The 
Departm ent's engineering section continues to provide all PC and netw ork installation, support and 
repair serv ices for the Instructional Departm ent and the Adm inistration Departm ent. Additionally, 
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the Departm ent upgraded its wide area netw ork from 56k to 256k-T1 bandwidth to provide for the 
new technologies contained in the school system 's technology plan. 

During fiscal 1999, as part of the 1996 $25,000,000 bond issue, 52 classrooms were 
com pleted at four school sites. The new 45 classroom elementary school in M andeville is 
scheduled to be opened in the fall of 1999. The rem aining 46 classroom s will be com bined with 
the 1998 bond issue and should be com pleted by the fall of 2001. 

The School Board, using in-depth forecasting m ethods and after a thorough review of existing 
school facilities developed a five-year capital im provement plan. As a result, on M ay 2, 1998, the 
voters of St. Tammany Parish approved a proposition which authorized the issuance of $55,000,000 
as discussed elsewhere in this letter. 

This five-year program will provide for the construction of 279 classroom s, including a new 
middle school in Mandeville and a new junior high school in the Pearl River area. These new 
perm anent classroom s will replace 125 existing portable classroom s. Additionally, new rest room 
facilities, paved parking and renovations to existing school facilities are a~so p~anned. In addition, 
Schoen M iddle School in Covington will be closed, its students transferred to Pine View M iddle 
School, and renovated for use as an adm inistrative facility. During fiscal year 1999, construction 
began on 40 new classroom s, a new cafeteria at M andeville Junior High, a new industrial arts 
building at Fontainebleau Junior High and parking lots at both Fontainebleau Junior High and 
Fontainebleau High. 

FINANCIAL INFO RM ATIO N 

Internal Controls. M anagem ent of the School Board is responsible for establishing and 
m aintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the assets of the School Board are protected 
from loss, theft or m isuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are com piled to allow for 
the preparation of financial statem ents in conform ity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these 
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control 
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits 
requires estimates and judgements by management. 

Single A udit. As a recipient of federal, state and parish financial awards, the School Board 
also is responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure com pliance 
with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. The internal controls are subject 
to periodic evaluation by m anagem ent. 

As a part of the School Board's single audit, described earlier, significant internal controls 
are considered, including that portion related to federal financial awards, as well as to test the 
School Board's com pliance with m aterial provisions of applicable laws and regulations. The results 
of the School Board's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 provided no instances 
of m aterial weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws 
and regulations. 

Budgeting Controls. In addition, the School Board m aintains budgetary controls. The 
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with the annual appropriated budgets, 
including all subsequent amendm ents, approved by the School Board. Activities of the General 
Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds are included in 
the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which 
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expenditures cannot exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the function or project 
level w ithin the individual funds. The School Board also m aintains an encum brance accounting 
system as one technique of accom plishing budgetary control. Encum bered am ounts at year end, 
for budgetary purposes, are included as expenditures in the General Fund and the Capital Projects 
Funds. In the other funds, encum bered am ounts lapse at year end, however, encum brances 
generally reappropriated as part of the next year's budget. 

As dem onstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this 
report, the School Board continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial m anagem ent. 

General Governm ent Functions. The following schedule presents a sum m ary of Genera 
Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Funds revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30 
1999 and the am ount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues 

Revenue _  Amoun~ 

Increase Percent of 
Percent (Decrease) Increase 
of Tot~ From 1998 (Decrease~ 

Local sources: 
Taxes: 
Ad valorem $37,543,149 17.42% 
Sales and use 43,058,382 19,98 
Rentals, leases and royalties 16,104 .01 
Tuition 868,674 ,40 
Earnings on Investm ents 2,827,925 1,31 
Food serv ice 2,533,021 1,18 
Other 607.406 .28 
Total local sources 87,454,661 4g~58 

State sources: 
Equalization 
Contributions to Teachers' 
Retirem ent 

Revenue sharing 
Professional Im provem ent 
Program 

Other 
Total state sources 

$844,838 
3,349,992 

4,210 
69,168 
391,905 
104,635 
99 755 

4,864,70_3 

107,920,484 50.09 7,541,497 

157,280 
1.781.976 

08 
83 

1,130,613 .52 
4,260,724 1.98 

115.251.077 53,50 

(2,757) 
60.423 

2.30%  
8.44 
35.40 
8.65 
16.09 
4.32 
19.65 
5.89 

7.51 

(1.72) 
3.51 

(23,149) (2.01) 
41,431 .98 

7,6174~4~.5. 7.08 

Federal sources 12.757.100 5.92_ 59~  

TOTAL REVENUES 

4.92 

6.46 

The two m ost significant local revenue sources are property taxes and sales taxes. Property 
tax m illages are established by the State Constitution and/or tax propositions approved by the 
electorate. Any increase to current m illages or additional m illages m ust be approved by a 
referendum of the voters. Ad valorem taxes show a sustained growth prim arily due to the 
population growt h and the related home and com mercial construction being added to the tax roles. 
Sales taxes show a continued growt h in collections which is attributable to the expansion of the 
local econom y over the previous year and to the growt h in the population. The School Board 
collects the m axim um two percent sales tax allowed by state law. The increase in earnings on 
investm ents is prim arily attributable to the accum ulation of a General Fund fund balance, thereby 
providing funds for investm ent. 
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State revenue sources continue to provide the majority of the School Board's revenue. The 
increase in the State's 1996-99 appropriation for equalization is com posed prim arily of the State 
Legislature's efforts to fully fund the Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) formula and the funding 
for a $1,200 teacher salary increase. 

The increase in federal sources is primarily due to extra funding for the various programs 
directed toward disadvantaged students, parlicutarly for those in the IDEA Title I Program . 

The following schedule presents a sum m ary of General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and 
Debt Service Funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 and the percentage of 
increases and decreases in relation to prior year expenditures. 

E.xpenditures Amou._~ 

Current: 
Instruction: 
Regular Ed program s 
Special Ed program s 
Vocational education 

Increase Percent of 
Percent (Decrease) Increase 
of TotaJ from 1998 ~Decrease) 

$73,330,690 35.56% $2,662,624 3.77% 
34,265,961 16.62 3,058.323 9.79 

program s 4,206,620 2.04 
Other instructional program s 4,827,102 2.34 
Special program s 3,660,088 1.78 
Adult education program s 299 6.,.~ _50 .15 

135,309 
491,100 
93,145 
80,323 

3.32 
11.33 
2.60 
36.62 

Total instruction 1
_ 20,630,!1! 58,4_9 6.520.824 5.71 

Support services: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
G eneral adm inistration 
School adm inistration 
Business adm inistration 

8,118,369 
7,883,533 
3,376,895 
10,721,643 
1,399.455 

O peration and m aintenance 
of plant 14,742,254 
Pupil transportation 11,840,239 
Cenlral services 1,758, .37,~ 

3.93 
3.82 
1.64 
5.20 

.68 

7.15 
5.74 
, ,85 

680,825 
707,981 
214,474 
319,836 
147.079 

9.15 
9.87 
6.78 
3.07 
11.74 

547,899 3.86 
548,126 4.85 

. 222.517 14.49 

Total support services 59.840.76! 29.01 3.388.7:37 6.00 

Food serv ices 
Com m unity serv ices 
Facilities acquisition 
and construction 
Debt serv ice: 

10,530,543 
786,077 

199.161 

5.11 
.38 

.10 

Pnn~pal 7,740,~00 3.75 
Interestand othercharges 

_  6,532J2_.8.Z 3.16 

692,588 7.04 
29,838 3.95 

(2,523) (1.25) 

1,525,DDD 24.54 
980,622 17.36 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ~
_ 206.256,949 100.00% ~  6.79% 
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As shown above, expenditures for instructional purposes increased by $6.5 million. W hen 
added to the increases for pupil and instructional staff support, less the debt service increases, this 
represents approxim ately 75% of the total increase in expenditures. This indicates that we are 
continuing to place a larger portion of our resources into the classroom . 

Included in the expenditures for instructional purposes is the locally funded $1,000,000 and 
the State funded $860,548 for technology and the State funded $437,392 for teacher supplies. Also 
included is the locally funded increase from $22.75 to $35 per student provided to each school for 
site-based instructional purposes and the locally funded $50 for each vocational agricultural student 
as required by State statute. 

Reflected throughout the expenditures is the State funded $1,254 teacher salary increase and 
the one-time salary supplement of $300 for full time and $150 for part time support personnel. 
Additionally, local funding provided a $4 00 salary increase for teachers and a $500 salary increase 
for support personnel. Also reflected are the related increases in retirem ent, workers' 
com pensation, social security and m edicare based on these salary increases. Additionally, 
throughout the expenditures is the 4%  increase in the group insurance life and health rates. 

G eneral Fund Balance. The fund balance of the G eneral Fund increased in fiscat year 
1999 to $23,489,075 which is the equivalent of 34 working days of expenditures. The fund balance 
is prim arily earm arked for the im provem ent in ratings of any future debt general obligation 
issuances, The continued growth of the fund balance reflects the philosophy in sound financial 
management of both the School Board and the administration in that revenue projections are based 
on conserv ative estim ates in relation to past receipts and expenditures are stringently controlled by 
utilizing the encum brance budgetary basis. In this m anner, the School Board anticipates that it 
would be able to continue providing the necessary level of services should revenues encounter a 
tem porary downturn. The School Board does not anticipate entering the short-term debt m arket 
to finance current operating expenditures. 

Debt Adm inistration. At June 30, 1999, the School Board had a num ber of debt issues 
outstanding, including $12,960,000 of sales tax bonds, $120,230,000 of general obligation bonds, 
and $3,065,000 of certificates of indebtedness. 

The School Board is lim ited by state statute from issuing sales tax bonds in excess of 
seventy-five percent of the anticipated sales tax revenues. The one-cent sales and use tax 
dedicated to serv ice the bonds will expire in 2007 when the bonds are redeem ed. 

Under state statute, the School Board's general obligation bonded debt issuances are subject 
to a lim itation based on thirty-five percent of total assessed value of real and personal property 
within the parish. As of June 30, 1999, the School Board's general obligation bonded debt of 
$120,230,000 was well below the legal limit of $260,405,642 and debt per capita equaled $654. 
The genera l obligation bonds are serviced by an ad valorem tax levy. 

The certificates of indebtedness are serv iced by an irrevocable pledge from the levy and 
collection of a special G eneral Fund ad valorem tax of 4.47 m ills. 

(continued) 



A sum m ary of ratings, by issue, follows 

Issue 

Sales Tax Bonds 
1992 (1) 
1995 (2) 

G eneral Obligation Bonds 
1990(1) 
1991 (1) 
1992(3) 
1993 
1993(1) 
1996 (2) 
1997 
1998A (2) 
1998B (2) 

Original Ratings 
Am ount Standard 
_Issued M oody'$ and P00r's 

$11,000,000 
7.500.000 

9,875,000 
30,800,000 
5,000,000 
3,540,000 
13,195,000 
25,000,000 
7,415,000 
55,000,000 
14.480.000 

Aaa 
Aaa 

Aaa 
Aaa 
Aaa 
Baal 
Aaa 
Aaa 
A3 
Aaa 
Aaa 

Certificates of Indebtedness: 
1994 (3) 6,000,000 Aaa 

(1) Insured by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company 
(2) Insured by Financial Security Assurance, Inc. 
(3) Insured by AMBAC Indemnity Corporation 

AAA 
AAA 

During fiscal year 1999, the School Board issued $55,000,000 of general obligation bonds 
dated July 1, 1998 w hich are secured by unlim ited ad valorem taxation. The bonds m ature from 
M arch 1, 1999 through M arch 1, 2018 and have an interest rate ranging from 4.5% to 6.75% . The 
proceeds are to be used for the construction of new school facilities and for im provem ents to 
existing school facilities. The bonds were approved by the voters of St. Tam m any Parish in a 
referendum held M ay 2, 1998. 

On August 28, 1998, the School Board issued $14,480,000 of general obligation bonds dated 
July 1, 1998 to advance refund $14,015,000 of School District No. 12 outstanding bonds dated 
June 1, 1991. The advance refunding will reduce the total debt service payments by $1,128,978 
over the life of the bonds. The refunded bonds are considered defeased and have been rem oved 
from the School Board's General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Also not included in the School 
Board's General Long-Term Debt Account Group are $4,775,000 of School District No. 12 General 
Obligation Bonds defeased on June 1, 1991, $1,130,000 of School District No. 8 General 
Obligation Bonds defeased on February 1, 1993 and $6,970,000 of School District No. 12 General 
Obligation Bonds defeased on February 5, 1997. The Notes to the Financial Statem ents contain 
m ore detailed inform ation on the defeased bonds. 

Cash Managem ent. Cash tem porarily idle during the year was invested in dem and deposits, 
certificates of deposit and the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) administered by the State 
Treasurer. The School Board earned interest revenue of $6,155,959 on all investments for the year 
ended June 30, 1999. 

(continued) 
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The School Board's investm ent policy is to m inim ize credit and m arket risks while m aintaining 
a com petitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits in financial institutions were either insured 
by federal depository insurance or secured by the pledge of securities owned by the financial 
institution. These pledged securities are held by a m utually agreed upon third-party financial 
institution in the name of the School Board. All of the deposits in financial institutions m ade by the 
School Board during the year and at June 30, 1999 are classified in the category of the lowest credit 
risk as defined by the Governm ental Accounting Standards Board. The deposits m ade in LAM P 
are m ore fully discussed in the Notes to Financial Statements. 

Risk M anagem ent. Dudng fiscal year 1988, the School Board initiated a limited risk 
m anagem ent program for workers' com pensation. As part of this com prehensive plan, resources 
are being accum ulated in an Internal Service Fund to m eet potential losses. In addition, various 
risk control techniques, including em ployee accident prevention training, have been im plem ented 
to m inim ize accident-related losses. Third-party coverage is currently m aintained for individual 
workers' compensation claims in excess of $250,000. 

In addition, during fiscal year 1990, the School Board initiated a lim ited risk m anagem ent 
program for general liability and property dam age. Resources are transferred from the General 
Fund and accum ulated in an Internal Serv ice Fund to pay potenfial claim s. The School Board has 
undertaken a program to determ ine m ethods to lim it our exposure to general liability claim s and 
to m inim ize any potential loss of or dam age to property. Third party coverage of com m ercial 
insurance claims in excess of $150,000 for both general liability and property damage is maintained 
by the School Board. 

OTHER INFO RMATION 

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants. The accounting and auditing firm of KPM G Peat M arwick LLP was selected by the 
School Board to perform the fiscal year 1999 audit. In addition to meeting the requirem ents set forth 
in state statutes, the audit also was designed to m eet the requirem ents of the federal Single Audit 
Act and related O M B Circular A-133. The independent auditors' report on the general purpose 
financial statem ents is included in the financial section of this report. The independent auditors' 
reports related specifically to the Single Audit Act are included in the Single Audit Section. 

Aw ards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada 
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the St. 
Tam m any Parish School Board for its com prehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1998. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governm ent unit m ust publish an 
easily readable and effi ciently organized com prehensive financial report, whose contents 
conform to program standards. Such reports m ust satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirem ents. 

The St. Tam m any Parish School Board was also awarded a Certificate of Excellence in 
Financial Reporting for its com prehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1998 by the Association of School Business Officials, International (ASBO). 
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].1 



 

The award certifies that the school system has presented its com prehensive annual financial 
report to the ASBO Panel of Review for critical review and evaluation and that the report was judged 
to have com plied with the principles and practices of financial reporting recognized by ASBO. 
Receiving the award is recognition that the school system has m et the highest standards of 
excellence in school financial reporting. 

Both a Certificate of Achievement (GFOA) and a Certificate of Excellence (ASBO) are valid 
for a period of one year only. The St. Tam m any Parish School Board has received both certificates 
for the last eleven consecutive years. W e believe our current com prehensive annual financial report 
continues to conform to the program requirements of both organizations and we are subm itting it 
to G FOA and ASBO to determ ine its eligibility for each of the certificates. 

Acknow ledgm ents. The preparation of the com prehensive annual financia~ report on a 
tim ely basis was m ade possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Business Affairs 
Departm ent. Each m em ber of the department has our sincere appreciation for the 
contributions m ade in the preparation of this report. 

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Mem bers of the School Board, both 
ndividually and collectively, preparation of this report would not have been possible. 

Respectfully subm itted 

Leonard P. M onteleone 
Superintendent 
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Suite 3500 One Shell Square 
New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

The M em bers of the 
St. Tam nlany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana: 

Independent Auditors' Report 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material m isstatement. An audit 
includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estim ates m ade 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. W e believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

ht our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the School Board as of June 30, 1999, and the results of its operations and 
the cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conform ity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

In accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 25
, 1999, 

on our consideration of the School Board's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance w ith certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

]7 



Our audit w as performed for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the general purpose financial statements 
of the School Board taken as a whole. The com bining, individual fund and individual account group 
financial statem ents and schedules listed in the accom panying table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purp ose financial statements, Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements 
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general purp ose financial 
statem ents taken as a whole. 

Oclober 25, 1999 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Combined Balance Sheet-All Fund Types and Account Groups 
June 30, 1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for June 30, 1998 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 
Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (note 5) 
Investments (note 6) 
Receivables: 
"[axes: 
Ad vaterem 
Sales and use 
Intergovernmental: 
Federal 
State 
Other 

Total receivables 

Governmental Fund Types 

General 
Special 
Revenu~ 

Debt 
Sen/ice 

$35,094,306 & 323.,3_52 10,192._459 
1,806,724 

572,296 

56,462 
572,332 
516 324 

1,717,416 

Due from other funds (note 7) 3,g26,278 
Inventory (note 1-1) 
Prepaid item s 
Other assets 
Property, plant and equipment (note 8) 
Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Other debits: 
Amount available in debt service funds 
Amount to be provided for retirement 
of general long-term debt 

3,574,334 

1,527,080 
246,039 
9,9779 

5~357,437 

242.195 

139,321 

38j.~16 

Capital 

Projects 

10,964,159 
54.679.849 

40,645 

1,626,921 147,899 257,313 
259,620 

"[O"[AL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $42.5_4~4.7~_4 .10.56]~32-.5 .1Q,7_23.67~ 65.9_41.99:~ 
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Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Fiduciary 
Fund Type Account Groups 

Internal 
SePJi~e A9~ :Y 

5 039,805 

83,182 

83.182 

4.592 

1,735,692 
1~0~Z,87~ 

General 
.EixcdA ss~s 

6,031,030 
211,299,727 
39,043,302 
12,177,077 

General 
Long-Term 
~ b~ 

E~hi~tA 

Page 1 of 2 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

66,349,773 
5~52~452 

814,493 
3,574,334 

1,583,542 
818,371 

789,j 5j 

68,292,762 
].72Z,09] 

643,300 
3.350.366 

1,737,798 
1,129,299 
640.631 

7,580,191 7 501~394 

5,963,003 
259,620 

6,031,039 
211,299,727 
39,043,302 
12,177,077 

6,552,328 
240,602 
52,588 
189,203 

5,835,103 
205,707,741 
33,935,127 
5.717,334 

10,697,830 10,697,830 10,995,203 

135,260,073 

5,127..5Z9 2.~  ZEIL55.L.1.~  .1.4 &9_SZ.gg~ 
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135,260,073 86,289,740 

552,.186.,0.Z~ ~ 3~03.6~222 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covin9ton, Louisiana 

Combined Balance Sheet-All Fund Types and Account Groups (continued) 

Governmental Fund Types 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 
Liabilities: 
Salaries and wages payable 
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Due to other funds (note 7) 
Other liabilities 
Deferred revenues 

Special 

$15,013,206 
983,879 

2,707.492 174,501 

130,701 
135,276 
85.095 

Deposits due others (note 17) 
Liability for self-insurance losses (note 9) 
Claims liabiJity (note 9) 
Bonds and certificates of indebtedness payable (note 10) 
Compensated absences payable (notes 1-L and 10) 

Total Liabilities 

Equity and Other Credits: 
Investment in general fixed assets 
Retained Earnings: 
Reserved for employee benefits 
U,~r~as~a~ed, ~nd,~sig~at~  
Fund balanCeS (note l-N): 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserved for inventory 
Reserved for debt service 
Unreserv ed, undesignated 

Total Equity and Other Credits 

Commitments and contingencies [notes 9 and "18) 

Debt 

5,719,731 24,044 
29,996 
195,700 

Capital 
IP[oje~ts 

761,409 
1,106,581 
88,527 

171.751 
78,976 

23,317,324 4,368,421 

23.489.075 4,447.397 

10.697.830 

7.708,717 

56,276,732 

10, ~)~97~ 8_3D 63,985,449 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND 
OTHER CREDITS ~,~2.~5_~ ,7..2,~ .!_0,.,5C;E~325 .1Q, 7~2.1, 8.7_4 6~5,9_43,9.6.~ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Fiduciary 
Fund Type Account Groups 

Internal 
Se/vice AgeDly 

28.047 

405,361 
2,773,571 

1,181,884 
900.000 

General 
General 

Long-Term 
Petit 

136,255,000 
9,702,903 

2515,292 2,773,571 NONE 145~95~ 903 

812,919 
1.799.368 

2,612,287 

268,551,136 

NONE 268.551,136 NONE 

E~hJbiLA 

Page 2 of 2 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

15,013,206 
983,879 

3,671,449 
1,106,581 
5,963,003 
165,272 
686,156 

2,773,571 
1,181,884 
90O,O00 

136,255,000 
9.702,903 

178-.402,9D4 

1998 

14,297,062 
826,096 

3,359,483 
515,502 

6,552,328 
216,981 
704,519 

2,598,285 
955,389 
9O0,00O 

88,530,000 
8,754.943 

;128,120,579 

268,551,136 251,195,305 

8t2,919 
1,799,368 

7,880,468 
78,976 

10,697,830 
83,962~477 

959,123 
1.463.779 

6,924,474 
71,682 

10,995,203 
33,306,077 

373,783,174 304,915,643 

5,12.7,5Z9 Z,ZZ3,5Z_I 26_~,5.5_1~ .1.36 J.45.~  552,1.86,0.Z~ .4.~%.0.,3~ 2Z2 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund BalanCes 
AJt Govemmentat Fund Type s 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
V~th Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,1998 

REVENUES 
LoCal sources: 
Ta}ces: 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 
Rentals, leases, and royeltms 
Tuition 
Earnings on investments 
Food service 
Other 
State sources: 
Equa1~zab~n 
Contributions to 
Teachers' Retirement 

Revenue sharing 
Professionat Improvement Program 
Othe~ 
Federal sources 

Totalrevenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
InstruCtion: 
Regular Ed programs 
Spee.i~ Ed Prei)~srr.s 
Vocational Ed programs 
Other instructional programs 
Specia~ program~ 
Aduit Ed programs 

Support services: 
Pupit support 
Instructional slaff support 
General administralion 
School administration 
Bus~ness =dmta~stragon 
Operation and maintenance  of plant 
Pupil transportagon 
Central services 

Food service 
Community service programs 
Facilities acquisition and construction 
Debt ~er~ice: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 
Issuance costs 
Advance  refunding escrow 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from bond sales 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Payment to escrow agent 

Total other Bnanciog sources (uses) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 
AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

G~nolal 

$26,534,959 

207.170 
1,958,052 

Spe cial 
R~vC9~  

106,738.958 1.~83,518 

157,280 
1,781.976 
t,130,613 
2,785,E70 
305,664 

1,475,054 
~~ 43e  

1:2,1722~ 212 61~ 474 

72,433,920 
32~54,851 
3,964,744 
4.546.217 
217,355 
299,650 

39,241,911 
(2,499,241 

837,264 
1,450,987 
558,O95 

f 9,844~ ooQB 

1,602,138 
43,029,414 

[)ebt 

584.962 

14,625.13 

14~Bg,oog 
2,B3O,O0O 
(95,394) 

39~ 7~ 4~ ,~ 27~) 2E34,s~s 

7,135,0B1 

16,3~ 994 
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426.190 

4,021,207 

(297,373 

10~995.203 



 

[~emorandum O~  
Cepital 
PIQjQCtS .J~99 L 

3,092,248 

200.000 

3,292.24~ 

5.994.631 

37,543,149 
43,058,382 

16,104 
669,674 

6,926,173 
2.533.021 
807,405 

107.920,404 100,378,967 

157,280 
1,781.976 
1.130,613 
4,260,724 
12,707,100 

73,330,690 
34,285,961 
4.206,620 
4,827,102 
3,680.058 
299,660 

7,740,000 
5.973.630 
197,806 
0~ ,953 

(12,881,683) (3,677~665~ 

65.000,000 
1,940.000 

69.450.000 
49,614,049 
(45,614.649) 

5r~,94o&~  55 o oo,oOO  

19,927,032 51.297.436  

302.6~1.9~7~53 

203,6D3,741 

70,668.066 
31,227,638 
4,071.311 
4,336,002 
3.986.943 
219,327 

6,215,000 
5,551.665 

202,6t2~096 

42,046,470 
(42,04~,470) 

990,835 
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REVENUES 
LoCal Sources: 
Taxes: 
Ad valorem 
Eatas and use 
Rentals, teases, and royalties 
Tuition 
Earnings on investments 
Food service 
Other 
State Bourn s: 
EquahzaSon 
Contributions to 
leachers' Retirement 

Revenue sharing 
Protess~m~B~ tmp~ovement program 
Other 
Federal sources 

Totalrevenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
Instruction: 
Reg~tar Ed programs 
Special Ed programs 
Vocational Ed programs 
Other instructional programs 
E.p~c~at pr~ rams 
AduR Ed programs 
Support Services: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business administration 
Ope r ~t;.on and m~nte~ nc~ of ptant 
Pupt tr an~portalion 
Central ~ervices 
Food sewice 
Community service programs 
Facilities ac, quisdlon and constn~~t~on 
Debt servia : 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 
Issuance costs 
Advance refunding escrow 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVE NUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from bond ssles 
Ope rating Bansfets in 
Operating transfers out 
Payment to escrow agent 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expe nditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actusl - AJl Governmental Fund Types 

For the Year Ended .b~e 30.1099 

GENERAL FUND (NON-GAAP BASTS) 

B~d~g~t 

$26.189.000 

165,000 
1.6D1.000 

106.736.966 

Varianoe 
Favonatde 

26.534.959 

207.170 
1.958.052 

573,862 

106.736,966 

157.280 
1.781.976 
1,130,613 
2,785.670 

74.616.728 
33,191,0t8 
3,099318 
4.722,938 

260,965 

~76,669.623 

{35 33~0 523) 

38,161,818 
(2,489,555) 

'iO.gBO 
12.076 
(6,367) 
57.636 

933,212 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (GAAPBASIS) 
Variance 
Favorable 

43.~58,382 
16.104 
661.504 
284.611 

2,633,621 
33.544 

1.662.068 

699.160 
1,586352 
549.7~9 

1.475.054 
12j4~ 36 

61,697,474 

666,770 
1,531,110 
241.876 
280.885 

837,264 
1,450.867 
558,096 

~29.5~ 1.098) 5,~ 425 40,33~1 603 

39,241,811 
(2,469.241 

1,080,092 
3t4 

1,600,660 
(41.972,735) 

1,602,138 
(43.028,414 

Total other financing sources (uses) 35~672,264 36~ 75~  ..1~ 06 ~40.372.175~  ~41.42~276) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER F)NANCING USES 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

See accomp~nying notes to tiaanctat statements 

341.741 

1~.~45 752 16/~it 5~752 NONE 
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(40.372) 426,190 

4,62~ ,267 

61,916 
35,785 
(8,366) 

8.762 
13,671 

29,703 
6,683 

672~134 

1,521,663 

1.578 
(%056,678) 

1~ 05~.tO!) 

466.662 

. _  J 



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (GAAP BASIS) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (NON-GAAP BASfS) 

~udgct 

Vs~iance 
Favorable 

~Un f~yoraJ~J~J Budget Actua I 

10.829,388 11.000,199 181,902 

961,000 584,962 

7,740,000 
5,955,816 

26.289 
503,357 

7,740.000 
5.973,635 

15,686 
539.953 

4,605,305 14,625~131 

{3.220,918) {3,031.979) 

14,480.000 
2,830,000 
(95,394) 

14~480j000) 

2,735.000 2,734,696 

10,995,204 

~0,50%265 

10,999,209 

J~69].6~Q 

3,029,590 

200,OO0 

Va~srce 
Favora~e 

{Unfavora~eJ 

3.092,240 62,748 

200.000 

3,229,500 3~~ 248 . 
62,748 

30,470,092 16,987,116 13,482,906 

12,178 
7,603 182,682 179.200 3,482 

(3~,606) __  

(16,825J 

188,939 

39652~ 684 ~ 1663~31616 13.49 6~368 

~27~4~ 84) (13,8~  13.549~116 

55.000,OOO 59,000,000 
1.940.000 1.940.000 

(394) 

{394) ~ 400,~ 000 56,940,000 NONE 

29.516,81E 43,065.932 13,549,116 

13.210.800 13,210,800 
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ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Retained Earnings 

Proprietary Fund Type - 
Intem at Service Funds 

Exbit~it D 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Em ployer contributions 
Insurance proceeds 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Contractual services 
Prem ium paym ents 
Benefit paym ents 
Claim s 
Increase in provision 
for self-insurance Posses 
Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

O PERA TING LO SS 

NON-OPERA TING REVENUES 
Earnings on investm ents 

NET INCOM E 

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEG INNING 
O F YEAR 

:1999 

$2.947.962 

_1998 

$2,712,818 
18.834 

2,947,962 2 731,652 

205,830 
707,092 

1,266,853 
580.853 

226,495 
7~71

~ 5 

200,353 
833,356 

1,106,116 
496.914 

172,624 

_ 
9,021 

2,994,363 2,818 384 

(46,401) (86,732) 

23 5,786 
~  
233,990 

189.385 147.258 

2,422,902 2~27~ 644 

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR ~;2~6.11~21~ ~;~ 422,9~02 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents 
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ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund Type- 
Intern al Service Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 

CASH FLOW S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from employer contributions 
Insurance proceeds 
Cash payments for: 
Benefits and claim s 
Insurance prem ium s 
Serv ices and other operating expenses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOW S FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Earnings on investments 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUtVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
END OF YEAR 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by 
operating activities: 
Increase in provision for self-insurance losses 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Decrease in receivables 

Increase (decrease) in payables 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents 
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E~ b~  

_1~99 1998 

$2,957,495 

(1,831,785) 
(707,092) 

$2,828,599 
18,634 

(1,611,481) 
(833,356) 
(2o9,524) 

205.073 193.072 

. 
244~551 222,146 

449,624 415,218 

4.590.181 4,~17-4; 963 

}5.039~805 $~,59~J61 

($46,401) ($86,732) 

226,495 

9,533 
15,446 

$20&Q7~ 

172,624 

115,761 
(8,6o~  

$193.072 



St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
A . Reporting Entity 
B . Basis of Presentation-Fund Accounting 
C. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus 
D . Budget Practices 
E . Encumbrances 
F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
G . Intergovernmental Receivables 

H. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables 
I . Inventory 
J . General Fixed Assets 
K . Long-Term Obligations 
L . Compensated Absences 
M . Sales and Use Taxes 
N . Reserves of Fund Balance 
O . Claims and Judgements 
P. Comparative Data and Total Columns on Comb ined Statements 

2 . EXCESS OF EXPEND ITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

3 . TERM INATED FUND 

4 . AD VALOREM TAXES 

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

6 . INV ESTMENTS 

7. DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS 

8 . PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

9 . RISK MANAGEMENT 

i0 . C~DANGES IN GENERAL LONG~TERM DEBT 

Ii . DEFEASANCE AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

12 . PRIOR YEAR DEFEASAN CE OF DEBT 

13 . TAX ARBITRA GE REBATE 

14 . RETIREMENT 

15 . POSTEMPLOYM ENT HEAL TH CAR E AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

16 . LEASES 

17 . CHANGES IN AGENCY DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS 

18 . LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 



St. Tau~ any Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

i . SUMYa~ Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL3CIES 

A . REPORTING ENTITY 

The St. Tammany Parish School Board (School Board) was created by Louisiana 
Revised Statute (LRS) 17:51 for the purpose of providing public education for the 
children within St. Tammany Parish, Louisiana. The School Board is authorized by 
LRS 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own government consistent 
with the laws of the State of Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Board 
of Elementary and Secondary Education . The School Board is authorized to establish 
public schools as it deems necessary, to provide adequate school facilities for the 
children of the parish, to determine the number of teachers to be employed, and to 
determine local supplement to their salaries. The School Board is comprised of 15 
members who are elected from 15 districts for concurrent terms of four years. 

The School Board operates 52 schools within the parish with a total enrollment 

of approximately 32,600 pupils. In conjunction with the regular educational 
programs, some of these schools offer special education and/or adult education 
programs . Additionally , the School Board provides transportation and school food 
services for the students. 

For financial reporting purposes, the School Board includes all funds, account 
groups, and activities for which the School BoaYd exercises financial 
accountability . The School Board memb ers are elected by the public, have decision- 
making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to significantly 
influence operations and primary accoun tability for fiscal matters. Certain units 
of local government, over which the School Board exercises no financial 

accountability, such as the parish police jury, other independently elected parish 
officials, and municipalities within the parish, are excluded from the financial 
statements. These units of government are considered separate reporting entities 
and issue financial statements separate from that of the School Board . The School 
Board is not a component un it of any other entity and does not have any component 
units which require inclusion in the general purpose financial statements. 

B . BASIS OF PRESENTATION-FUND ACCOUNTING 

The accounts of the School Board are organized on the basis of funds and 
account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity . The 
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Revenues are accounted for 
in these individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent 
and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The funds presented in 
the financial statements are described as follows: 
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ST . TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON , LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

Governmental funds are 
functions of the 

those through which 
School Board are 

most governmental 
financed. The 

acquisition, use and balances of the School Board 's 
expendable financial resources and the related liabilities 
(except those accounted for in the proprietary funds) are 
accounted Zor through governmental funds . The measurement 
focus is upon determination of changes in financial 
position, ~ather than upon net income determination . The 
following are the School Board 's governmental fund types: 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the 
School Board . It accounts for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in other funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes . These funds account 
for the revenues and expenditures related to federal, state 
and local grant and entitlement programs and special 
district funds established for various educational 

objectives. 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt Service Funds, established to meet requirements of 
bond ordinances, are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for and the payment of general long-term debt 
principal, interest, and related costs . 

Capital Projects Funds 

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources 
to be used for the acquisition or construction of major 
c!apital facilities (other than those financed by the 

proprietary funds). Separate capital projects funds are 
~ intained to account for the proceeds of major general 
obligation bonds and other financing proceeds

. 

32 

continued) 



St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 1999 

ProDrleta~v Fund TYPe 

Proprietary Funds are used ~o account for ~he School Board's 
ongoing organizations and activities which are similar to 
those often found in the private sector. The measurement 
focus is upon determination of net income. The School Board's 
proprietary fund type is limited to Internal Service Funds as 

fOIIO'~S: 

Internal Service Funds 

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for and the payment of benefits by 
the School Board 's self-lnsurance programs. The School 
Board maintains the following self-insurance funds: 

Workers' Compensation Fund - This ~und is used to 
account for the payment of workers ' compensation 
benefits . 

Risk Management Fund - This fund is used to account for 
general liability, which is fully insured with a 

deductible of $150,000 per occurrence, and property 
damage, which is fully insured with a deductible of 

$150,000 per occurrence. 

Fund revenues are derived from government allocations. 
The~e ~evenues are planned t~ ~atoh: (I) expenses of 
insurance premiums in excess of self-insurance amounts; (2) 
estimated claim losses resulting from self-insurance 
programs which include estimated liabilities for claims 
incurred but not yet reported at year end, and (3) operating 
expenses . 

Fiduciary Fund Typ e 

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the 
Schoo] Board in a trustee or agency capacity . The School 
Board maintains one fiduciary fund typ e, an agency fund . 
The agency fund is custodial in nature (assets equal 
liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of 
operations . 

(continued) 
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Agency Fund 

St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Loulsisna 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

The School Board maintains one agency fund, the 
School Activity Agency Fund, which accounts for assets held 
by the Board in a custodial capacity . 

A Cco~ t C~rcnlr~  

Account groups are used to establish accounting control 
and accountability for the School Board 's general fixed 
assets and general long-term debt. The accoun t groups are 
not funds. They are concerned only with the measurement of 
financial position, not with measurement of results of 
operations. 

General Fixed Assets Account Group 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations 
(general fixed assets) are accounted for in the general 
fixed assets account group, rather than i~ the governmental 
funds. 

General Long-Term Debt Account Group 

Long-term debt expected to be financed from 
governmental funds is accounted for in the general long-term 
debt account group, not in the governmental funds . 

C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING/MEASUREMENT FOCUS 

Basis of accounting refers to when 
recognized and reported in the financial 

revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
statements . The accounting and financial 

reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus . All 
governmental fund types are accounted for using a current financial resources 
measurement focus, With this measurement focus , only current assets and current 
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet

. Operating statements of 
these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and 
decreases (i,e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets . 
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St. Tan~nany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

The proprietary fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources 
measurement focus . With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities 
associated with the operation of this fund type are included on the balance sheet . 

The School Board applies all a;~ licable Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) pronouncements issued on or before Novenlber 30, 1989 in accounting and 
reporting its proprietary fund operations ~ less those pronouncements conflict with 

or contradict Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. 

The governmental and fiduciary fund types (agency fund) are reported in the 
financial statements on the modified accrual basis of accounting . Under the 
modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded when they become both measurable and 
available . Available means expected to be collected within two months for property 
taxes and generally within the next twelve months for other revenues. Revenues not 
considered available are recorded as deferred revenues. The following practices in 
recording revenues and expenditures have been used for the governmental funds. 

Revenues 

Federal and state entitlements, which include state equalization and state 
revenue sharing, are recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid when available and 
measurable. Federal and state grants which are restricted as to the purpose of the 
expenditures are recorded when the reimbursable expenditures have been made. 

Ad valorem taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad 
valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, based on the assessed value on 
January I, become due on November 15 of each year, and become delinquent on Decemb er 
31. An enforceable lien attaches to the property as of November 15. The taxes were 
levied by the School Board on June Ii, 1998 . However, before the taxes can be 
collected, the tax rolls must be submitted to the State Tax Commission for approval. 
The taxes are generally collected in December, January , and February of the fiscal 
year. Property tax revenues are accrued at fiscal year end to the extent that they 
have been collected and are unremitted by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector's 
Office. Such amounts are measurable and available to finance current operations. 

Interest income on time deposits and revenues from rentals, leases, and 
royalties are recorded when earned . 

Sales and use tax revenues are recorded in the month collected by the 
St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector. 

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received 
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Expenditures 

St. Tau~ any Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

Salaries are recorded as expenditures when incurred. Nine-month employee 
salaries are incurred over a nine month period but paid over a twelve month period. 

Compensated absences are recognized as expenditures when leave is actually 
taken or when employees (or heirs) are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or 
death, while the cost of earned leave privileges not recg/iring current resources is 
recorded in the general long-term debt account group . 

Commitments under construction contract8 are recognized as expenditures when 
earned by the contractor . 

Principal and interest on general long-term obligations are not recognized 
until due . 

All other expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred, if it is expected 
to be paid within the next twelve months. Liabilities which will not be liquidated 
with expendable available financial resources are recorded in the general long-term 
debt account group . 

The proprietary fund type is reported in ~he financial statements on the 
accrual basis of accountin9 . Revenues are recognized when they are earned, and 
expenses are recognized when they are incurred . 

Deferred Revenues 

Deferred revenues arise when resources are received before the School Board 
has a legal claim to them, such as when grant monies are received prior to the 
incurrence of qu alifying expenditures, when tuition is received in advance of the 
commencement of classes or when there is an inventory of donated food commodities 
at year end. In subsequ ent periods, when the School Board has a legal claim to the 
resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance 
sheet and the revenue is recognized. 
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D . BUDGET PRACTICES 

St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington , Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

The proposed budgets for fiscal year 1999 were completed and made available 
for public inspection at the School Board office on August 6, 1998. A public 
hearing was held on August 27, 1998 for suggestions and comments from taxpayers. 
The proposed fiscal year 1999 budgets were formally adopted by the School Board on 
September i0, 1998. The budgets, which included proposed expenditures and the means 
of financing tbem, for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital 

Projects Funds were published in the official journal ten days prior to the public 
hearings . 

The budgets for the General and Capital Projects Funds for the fiscal year 
1999 were prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting except that 
outstanding encumb rances at the close of the fiscal year are treated as 
expenditures. The Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds' budgets for the 1999 
fiscal year were prepared on a modified accrual basis, consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

Formal budgetary accounts are integrated into the accounting system during the 
year as a management control device, including the recording of encumb rances. 
Appropriations are valid only for the year in which made, and any part of such 
appropriation which is not encumbered or expensed lapses at the end of the year . 
Current year transactions which are directly related to prior year's budget are not 
rebudgeted in the current year. 

The level of control over the budget is exercised at the function or program 

level for the General and Special Revenue Funds, at the project level for the 
Capita] Projects Funds and at the individual debt issue level for the Debt Service 
Funds. The Superintendent is authorized to transfer budget amounts within each 
function; however, any supplemental appropriations that amend the total expenditures 
of any fund require School Board approval. As required by state law, when actual 
revenues within a fund are failing to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by 

five per cent or moYe, and/or actual expenditures within a fund are exceeding 
estimated budgeted expenditures by five per cent or more, a budget amendment to 
reflect such changes is adopted by the School Board in an open meeting . Budgeted 
amounts included in the financial statements include the original adopted budget and 
all subsequent amendments. Amendments to the budget were not material. 
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St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

The following is a reconciliation between the excess (deficiency) of 
revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses for 
the General and capital Projects Funds as reflected in Exhibit B, which is 
prepared on a GAAP basis, and in Exhibit C, which is prepared on a non-GAAP basis. 
Because the budgets in the Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds are prepared on 
a modified accrual basis, no differences in budget basis and GAAP basis occur for 
those funds . 

General Fund : 
Excess of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures 
and other financing uses - Exhibit B 

Add - prior year encumbrances liquidated 
Less - current year encumbrances 

Excess of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures 
and other financing uses - Exhibit C 

$7,135,081 

208,242 
(171.751 

Capital Projects Funds: 
Excess of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures 

and other financing uses - Exhibit B $44,058,417 

Add - prior year encumb rances liqu idated 
Less - current year encumbrances 

Excess of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures 
and other financing uses - Exhibit C 

E . ENCUMBRANCES 

6,716,232 

(7.708.717) 

Encumbrance accounting , under which purchase orders , contracts, and other 

commitments are recorded, is employed by the General Fund and Capital Projects 
Funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund 
balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. As materials are 
subsequently received and construction contracts are executed, liabilities are 
recorded and the related encumbrances are liqu idated. 
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St. Ta~ any parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

F. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash includes amounts in demand 
Cash equivalents include amounts in 

deposits and interest-bearing demand deposits 
time deposits. 

Under state law , the School Board may deposit funds with a fiscal agent 
organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state 
in the union, or the laws of the United States. The School Board may invest in 
United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, or certificates and time deposits of 
state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal 
offices in Louisiana . In addition , local governments in Louisiana are authorized 
to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a non-profit corporation 
formed by the State Treasurer and organized under the laws of the State of 
Louisiana, which operates a local government investment pool. Investments are 
stated at cost . 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments 
with a maturity of three months or less at date of acquisition are considered to be 

cash equivalents in the Internal Service Funds. 

G . INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES 

Intergovernmental receivables consist of receivables for reimbursement of 
expenditures under various state and federal programs and grants. All amounts 
are expected to be collected within the next twelve months. 

H. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 

During the normal course of operations, numerous transactions occur between 
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables, as 
well as short-term interfund loans, are classified as due from other funds or due 
to other funds on the combined balance sheet . 

I . INV ENTORY 

Inventory of the School Food Service Special Revenue Fund consists of food 
purchased by the School Board and commodities granted by the United States 
Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana Department of Education . The 
commodities are recorded as revenues azd expenditures when consumed. Commodities 
inventory at year end is recorded as a deferred revenue. The purchased food is 
recorded as an expenditure when consumed. All inventory items purchased are valued 
at cost (first-in, first-out), and donated con~ odlties are assigned values based on 
information provided by the United States Department of Agriculture . 
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J . GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

Land, buildings and improvements, and furniture and equipment are 
recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and are capitalized in the 
general fixed assets account group at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are 
valued at their estimated market value on the date of donation . Approximately 
95 per cent of general fixed assets are valued at historical cost, while the 
remaining 5 per cent are valued at estimated cost, based on the historical cost of 
like items. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized . 

Improvements are capitalized over the remaining useful lives of the assets. No 
depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets , nor has interest been 
capitalized . 

K . LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Long-term obligations expected to 
are accounted for in the general long-term 

be financed from governmental funds 
debt account group . 

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due , 

or when resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early 
in the following year . For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected 
to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund 
liability of a governmental fund . The remaining portion of such obligations is 
reported in the general long-term debt account group . Long-term liabilities 
expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those 
funds . 

L . COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

All 32-month non-school administrative employees earn from I0 to 20 days of 
vacation leave each year, depending on length of service with the School Board

. A 
maximum of five days of vacation leave may be carried forward to the next calendar 
year . Upon termination, earned vacation leave is paid to the employee at the 
employee 's current rate of pay . 

All school board employees earn from i0 to 13 days of sick leave each year
, 

depending upon the number of months employed . Sick leave can be accumulated without 
limitation. Upon retirement, a maximum of 25 days of unused sick leave is paid to 
the employee at the employee 's current rate of pay

, and all unused sick leave 
is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service

. 
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Any employee with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by 
the school Board, to one semester of sabbatical leave after three years of 
continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more years of 
continuous service. Leave may be granted for rest and recuperation and professional 
and cultural improvement. 

The cost of compensated absence privileges (unused sick leave) is recognized 
as a current year expenditure in the General Fund when leave is actually taken, 
or when employees are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death , while the 
cost of leave privileges not requiring current resources is recorded in the general 
long-term debt account group . 

At June 30, 1999, employees of the School Board have accumulated and vested 

$9,702,903 of compensated absence benefits in salary and salary related payments, 
which is recorded within the general long-term debt account group since they are not 
payable from expendable available financial resources. 

M . SALES AND USE TAXES 

On June 25, 1966, the voters of St. Tammany Parish approved a one per cent 
sales and use tax which , after payment of necessary costs and expenses of collecting 
the tax, is dedicated for payments of salaries of teachers and other school 
personnel and for other operating expenses. On September 18, 1976, the voters of 
St. Tammany Parish approved a one per cent sales tax to be levied on behalf of the 
St . Tammany Parish School Board for a period of 15 years. On May 5, 1990 the 
voters of the parish authorized an extension of this tax for an additional 15 years, 
until expiration in 2007. The proceeds are dedicated for the purposes of capital 
improvements, maintenance, and operating expenses of the School Board. The sales 
and use taxes are collected by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector for a fee of 
1.15 per cent of the monthly collections . 

N . RESERVES OF FUND BALANCE 

Reserves on the governmental funds 
are not available for appropriations 
segregated for future use. 
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O . CLA IMS AND JUDGEMENTS 

The School Board provides for losses and anticipated expenses resulting from 

claims and judgements including claim adjustment expenditures/expense, salvage and 
subrogation. Losses resulting from claims and judgements are estimated by utilizing 
a case by case review of all claims in accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Codification Section C50. 

The liability for such losses is recorded in the Internal Service Funds. 
Incurred but not reported claims as of June 30, 1999, have been considered in 
determining the accrued liability . 

P . COMPARATIVE DATA AND TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS 

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the financial 
statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the School Board 's 
financial position and operations. However, comparative data (i.e., presentation 
of prior year total by fund type) has not been presented in each of the statements 
since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to 
read . 

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned 
Memorandum Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial 
analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position or results of 
operations or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation . Interfund 
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

2 . EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

For the year ended June 30, 1999, the following funds had actual expenditures 
over appropriations, at the functional level: 

F11nd and Vunct~ n 

General Fund : 
Special programs 
Adult Ed programs 

1966 Sales Tax Fund : 
General Administration 

1977 Sales Tax Fund : 
General Administration 

Parishwide District No. 12 
Debt Service Fund : 
Advance Refunding Escrow 

B~4g~  Actual Excess 

$196,289 
260,965 

217,947 
299.650 

243,223 249,307 

243,660 249,307 

21,658 
38,685 

6 ,084 

5 ,647 

503,357 539,963 36,606 

Actual expenditures exceeded appropriations as a result of unanticipated 
expenditures occurring in the month of June after the last budget revision . The 
excess expenditures were funded by available and appropriable fund balance. 

(continued) 
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During fiscal year 1999, the Building Committee Capital Projects Fund 
terminated . There was no residual equity . 

4 . AD VALOREM TAXES 

The following is a summary of authorized and levied parish wide ad valorem taxes 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999: 

Constitutional 
Additional Support 
Construction, Maintenance and (~ erations 
Improve , Maintain and Operating 
Bond and Interest - 

District No. 12 

Total millage 

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

4 .47 

6 .26 
4 .47 

46 .00 

25.90 

97,10 

At June 30, 1999, the School Board had cash and cash equivalents as follows 

Demand deposits 
Money market accounts 
Time certificates of deposit 

Total cash and cash equ ivalents 

$291,062 
8 ,862 ,404 

57 .196 .307 

Cash balances of all funds are combined to the extent possible . Interest 
earned on deposits is distributed to the individual funds based on the invested 
balances of the participating funds during the year. Interest is recorded when 
earned . 

Under state law, the bank balances of these deposits must be secured by 
federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent 
bank . The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit 
insurance must at all times equ al or exceed the amount on deposit with the 
fiscal agent. At June 30, 1999, cash and cash equ ivalents are entirely insured 
or eollateralized with securities held by a mutually acceptable third 
party financial institution in the School Board's name, however, the securities 
may be released only upon the written authorization of the School Board, which is 
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the lowest credit risk 
Board . The bank balances are 
follows : 

Total bank balances 

as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
fully insured and collateralized at June 30, 1999 as 

Federal deposit insurance 
Pledged securities 

Total collateral 

6 . INVESTMENTS 

$1,070,149 
78 .839 .912 

$79.910.061 

Investments of $57,524,452 at June 30, 1999 are in the Louisiana Asset 
Management Pool (LAMP), a local government investment pool. In accordance with GASB 
Codification Section I50.165, the investment in LAMP is not categorized in the three 
risk categories provided by GASB Codification Section I50.164 because the investment 
is in the pool of funds and thereby not evidenced by securities that exist in 
physical or book entry form . LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana . Only local 
governments having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in 
its pool of assets. While LAMP is not required to be a registered investment company 
under the ~nvestment Company Act of 1940, its investment policies are similar to 
those established by Rule 2-a7, which governs registered money market funds. The 
LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local 
governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, LAMP investments 
are restricted to securities issued, guaranteed, or backed the U .S . Treasury, the 
U .S. government, or one of its agencies, enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well 
as repurchase agreements collaterized by those securities. The dollar weighted 
average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, 
and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The fair 
market value of investments is determined on a weekly basis to monitor any variances 
between amortized cost and market value . For purposes of determining participant's 
shares, investments are valued at amortized cost. LAMP is designed to be highly 
liqu id to give its participants immediate access to their account balances. 
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7. DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS 

Individual balances due from/to other funds are as follows 

Fund 

General Fund 

Special Revenue Funds: 
IASA 
IDEA 
Voc Ed 
Miscellaneous Programs 
8G 

School Food Service 
1966 Sales Tax 
1977 Sales Tax 
Community Ed 

Due From 
Other Funds 

Due To 
Other Funds 

~2~__926.278 S130.701 

1 ,260,281 

14 ,577 

25,677 
6 ,145 

296,847 

23 ,394 

2,271,091 
617 ,694 

235,455 
356,248 
71,656 

112 

1,766 ,552 
389 ,191 
11 .732 

Total Special Revenue Funds i~_626 .921 5 .719 .731 

Debt Service Funds 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
Sales Tax Bond Reserve 
Certificate Sinking 
Parishwide School Dist . No . 12 

Total Debt Service Funds 

Capital Projects Funds 

$55 Million Construction 
$50 Million Construction 
$25 Million Construction 
Roofing Construction 
Parishwide Construction 

Total Capital 

Projects Funds 

Risk Management Internal 

Service Fund 

Total 

45 

147,249 

__  650 

_ _ 147,~  

84 ,150 

1 ,500 

~ 71,$$3 

23,394 
650 

24.044 

87,027 

1,500 

_ _ ~q57.313 88.5~7 

--  4 .592 

$5.963.QQ~ 
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8. PROPERTY, P~  21krD EQUIPMENT 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets are as follows 

Balance 
July 1, 

_  1998 ~dditio/l~ 

Land $5,835,103 
Buildings and improvements 205

, 707,741 
Furniture and equ ipment 33 , 935 ,127 

Construction in progress 5.717.3~  

195,927 
5,591,986 

5,555,460 

Balance 
June 30 , 

Deletions 1999 

6,031,030 
211,299,727 

447,285 39,043,302 

2.561.921 12.177,Q77 

Construction in progress at June 30, 1999 is composed of the following 

Abney E~ementary 

Bayou Woods Elementary 
Covington E3ementary 
Covington High 
Covington High 
Covington High 
Cypress Cove Elementary 
Fifth Ward Junior High 
Folsom Junior High 
Fontainebleau High 
Fontainebleau Junior High 
Little Oak Middle 
Magnolia Trace Elementary 
Mandeville High 
Mandeville High 
Mandeville Junior High 
Northshore High 
Northshore High 
Horthshore High 
Northshore High 
Pearl River High 
Pineview Middle 
Pineview Middle 
Riverside Elementary 

Project 
~uthorj~z~ation 

$934,379 
921,119 

1,269,440 
77,855 
55,475 

244 ,860 

873,797 
75,000 
45,000 

587 055 

1,509 570 
197 ,381 

5,882 567 
283 868 
250 000 

3,392 845 

1,271 605 
125 000 
256 505 
211 143 

45,000 
75,000 

4,571,057 
1,674 ,696 

46 

Incurred as of 
~/~ne 30. 1999 

777, 

908, 
841 , 

4 , 

9, 
244 , 

844 . 

500 

497 
249 
371 

458 
046 

560 

29,894 
13 ,337 

87,000 
223 ,716 

197,046 
5,480,039 

282 ,911 
197,622 
150,340 

31,060 

1,805 
232,137 
210,561 
32,652 
7 ,833 

214,933 
30 ,415 

156,879 

12 ,622 
428 ,191 

73 ,484 

46,017 

814 
29 ,237 

45 ,106 
31 ,663 

500,055 
1,285,854 

335 
402 ,528 

957 

52 ,378 
3,242,505 

1 ,240,545 

123 ,195 
24 ,368 

582 

12 ,348 
67 ,167 

4 ,356 ,124 
1,644 ,281 
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salmen High 
Slidell High 
slidell High 
Slidell High 
slidell High 
woodlake Elementary 

Total 

9 . RISK MANAGEMENT 
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Project 
Authorization 

$80,675 
623,604 
242 ,369 
77,855 

125,000 

108,236 
250,000 

1 .867 .400 

Incurred as of 
~ in e ~n . Iggg 

4 ,371 

524 ,822 
237,213 

4 ,371 
39,406 

36,216 
241,538 

36 .168 

Committed 

76,304 
98,792 
5,156 

73,484 
85,594 

72 ,020 

8,462 
1 .831 ,232 

The School Board initiated a risk management program for workers' 
compensation in fiscal year 1988. Premiums are paid into the Workers ' 
Compensation Internal Service Fund by all funds from which salaries are paid 
and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of 
the program. During fiscal year 1999, a total of $1,452,163 was incurred in 
benefits and administrative costs. An excess coverage insurance policy covers 

individual claims in excess of $250,000. lln amount for self-insurance losses 
of $i,I8~,884 has been accrued as a liability based upon an actuary's 
estimate . Interfu/id premiums are based primarily upon the individual funds' 
claims experience and are reported as expenditures in the individual funds. 

In addition, the School Board is exposed to various risks of loss 
related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; and 
natural disasters. During fiscal year 1990, the School Board established a 
Risk Management Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance 
its uninsured risk of loss . Under this program , the Risk Management Fund 

provides coverage up to a maximum of $150,000 for each general liability 
claim and $150,000 for each property damage claim. The School Board 
purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided 
by the ~A/nd. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage during 
the fiscal year. 

The General Fund of the School Board makes pa~nnents to the Risk Management 
Fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay claims and to 

accumulate funds for future catastrophic losses. At June 30. 1999, $1,799,368 of 
fund equity is designated for future catastrophic losses. The claims liability 

of $900,000 reported in the Fund at June 30, 1999 is based on the 
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board which requires that a 

(continued) 
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liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the 
financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has 
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of 
the loss can be reasonably estimated. 

Changes in the claims liability amount in previous fiscal years were as 
follows : 

Beginning of 
Fiscal Year 
Liability 

Workers' Compensation : 
3988-89 None 

3.989-90 $180,075 
3990-91 488 ,703 
1991-92 716 ,583 

3.992-93 625,505 

]993-94 880,869 
3994--95 967,275 
1995-96 1,129,762 
].996-97 963,332 
].997--98 815,244 

].998-.99 955,389 

Risk Management 

]989-90 
]990-91 
]991-.92 

]992-93 

1993--94 
]994 -95 
3995-96 

]996-.97 
]997-.98 
]998-99 

None 

$200,000 
575 ,000 

391,000 

409,436 
827 ,206 
972 ,126 

972 ,126 
867,521 
900 ,000 

Claims and 
Changes in 
_ Estimates 

486, 
702 , 

801 , 
512 , 

806, 

813, 
783, 
804 , 

703, 
],246, 

1,492 , 

Benefit 
Pa~nnents Balance at 
/d%d Fiscal 
Claims Year-End 

828 306, 

404 393, 
746 573 , 
942 604 , 

967 551, 

785 727, 
809 621, 
968 971, 
135 851, 
261 1,i06, 

873 1,266, 

254 ,878 
445,698 

(37,714 
301,887 
819 ,898 

539,874 
920 ,627 

462 ,088 

529,393 
580.853 

753 180,075 

776 488,703 
866 716 ,583 
020 625 ,505 

603 880,869 

379 967,275 
322 1 ,129,762 

398 963 ,332 
223 815,244 

116 955,389 
378 1,181 ,884 

54 ,878 

70 ,698 

146,286 

283,451 
402 ,128 

394 ,954 
920 ,627 

566 ,693 
496 ,914 
580 ,853 

200 , 

575, 
391, 

409 , 

827, 
972 , 

972, 
867, 

900, 
900 , 

000 

000 
000 

436 

206 
126 

126 

521 

000 
000 

The School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other 
risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims 
resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any 
of the past three fiscal years. 
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i0. CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions for the year 
ended June 30, 1999: 

Sales Tax Bonds 
General Obligation 

Bonds 
Certificates of 

Indebtedness 

Compensated Absences 
Total 

Balance 
July I, 
1998 

$14,150,000 

Balance 
June 30, 

AdditiQ/~  Deductions 199~ 
1,190,000 12,960,000 

70,655,000 69,480,000 19,905,000 120,230,000 

~,7~5.000 
88,530,000 
8 .754 .943 

$97.284.943 

69,480,000 

1.240.~u~_~ 

~0.72o.~ _~ 

660 .000 
21,755,000 

292 .486 

22.0~7.48~ 

3 .065 ,000 
136,255 ,000 

9.702 .903 
145 .957 .903 

A schedule of the individual issues outstanding as of June 30, 1999 is as 
follows : 

Sales Tax Bonds 
1992 
1995 

Total Sales 
Tax Bonds 

Original 
Issue 

$Ii,000,000 
7 .500 .000 

18 .500 .000 

General obligation Bonds : 
1990 9,875,000 
1991 30,800,000 

1992 5,000 ,000 
1993 3 ,540,000 
1993 13,I95,000 
1996 25,000,000 
1997 7,415,000 
1998A 55,000,000 

1998B ~4.48Q.000 
Total General 
Obligation 
Bonds 164 .305.000 

Final 
Interest Payment 
Rate _  _  Due 

5 .5-5 .8% 

5 .5% 

6.6% 
6.0-6 .5% 
5 .4-6 .1% 
5 .0-5 .4% 
4 .7-8 .8% 
5 .3-8 .0% 

4 .6-5.2% 
4 .5-5.0% 
4 .5-5 .0% 

2007 
2007 

2000 

2001 

2012 
2002 
2013 
2016 
2010 

2018 
2011 

Interest 

to Principal 
Maturity Q~tstandina 

$2,019,810 
1 .517 .175 

$7,295,000 
5 .665 .000 

3,536.985 12.96Q.000 

28,710 

426 ,435 

1 ,949,350 
87 ,835 

4 ,905,113 
13,565,368 
2 ,548,233 
30,573,430 

4 .249.425 

435,000 
4 ,605,000 

4 ,070 ,000 
1,060,000 

11,430,000 
23 ,210,000 

7,195,000 
53,765,000 
14 .460,000 

58.333.899 ~ 0.230.000 

Certificates of 
Indebtedness 

1994 6.000.000 4.9-5.0% 2003 392.32Q 3,065.000 

Total $188,805,000 S62.263,201 ~9~36.255,000 
(continued) 
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All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with 
Louisiana law by the annual ad valorem tax levy on taxable property within the 
parish or by the 1977 sales and use tax . At June 30, 1999, the School Board 
has accumulated $10,697,830 in the debt service funds for future debt service 
requ irements . 

The Sales Tax Bonds require the maintenance of a reserve as additional 
security for debt repayment . At June 30, 1999, the School Board has accumulated 

$1,850,000 in reserve and is in compliance with the requ irements of the debt 
agreement . 

The sales tax bonds, genera], obligation bonds, and certificates of 
indebtedness are due as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 2uQ~ 
2000 
2003 

2002 
2003 

2004 

2005-2009 
2009-2013 
2015-2018 

pr~nc~nsi paym ents 

Bonds 

$7,980,000 
8,325,000 
8,175,000 

8 ,475,000 
8,845,000 

38,515,000 
32 ,735,000 

~0.140,000 
$i~3.190,000 

Certificates 
of 

Indebtedness 
700,000 
740,000 

790,000 
835 ,000 

Combined 
Interest 

p_~vments 
7,124 ,348 

6,616,930 
6,103,632 

5 ,642 ,380 
5,159,782 

19,323,636 

9,899,616 

2,392,880 
62.263.204 

Total 
15,804 ,348 
15,681,930 
15,068,632 

14 ,952 ,380 
14 ,004,782 
57,838,636 
42,634,616 

22.532.88Q 
~98.518.2Q~ 

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board 
is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt funded solely by 
ad valorem taxes in excess of 35 percent of the assessed value of taxable 
property. At June 30, 1999, the statutory ]~mit is $260,405,642 and the legal 
debt margin is $148,283,888. Outstanding bonded debt payable from ad valorem 
taxes at June 30, 1999 totaled $120,230,000. 

ii . DEFEASANCE AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

On August 28, 1998, the School Board issued $14,480,000 of School District 
No. 12 general obligation bonds, Series 1998B dated July i, 1998, with an average 
interest rate of 4.7% to advance refund $14,015,000 of School District No. 12, 
Series 1991, outstanding bonds with maturities ranging from March i, 2002 through 
March i, 2011 and an average interest rate of 6 .5%. These bonds are callable on 
March i, 2001 . 

(continued) 
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The net proceeds of $14,443,557 (after payment of $36,423 in underwriting 
fees and other issuance costs) plus $539,963 of sinking fund monies were used to 
purchase U .S . Government securities. These securities were placed in an 
irrevocable trust fund with an escrow agent to provide future debt service 
requirements. The advance refunding met the requirements of an in substance 
defeasance and the bonds have been removed from the School Board's general long- 
term debt account group . 

The School Board advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt 
service payments over the life of the bonds by $1,128,978 and to obtain an 
economic gain (the difference between the present values of the debt service 
payments on the old and new debt) of $848,168. 

Also, on August 28, 1998, the School Board issued $55,000,000 of School 
District No . 12 general obligation bonds, Series 1998A dated July I, 1998, 
secured by unlimited ad valorem taxation . These bonds mature from March i, 1999 
through March i, 2018 and have an interest rate ranging from 4.5% to 6.75%. The 
bonds were authorized by the voters of St. Tammany Parish in a referendum held 
May 2, 1998 and the proceeds are to be used for the construction of new school 
facilities and for improvements to existing school facilities. 

12 . PRIOR YEAR DEFEASANCE OF DEBT 

On June i, 1991, the School Board defeased the June i, 1984 School 
District No. 12 General Obligation Bonds maturing on or after March i, 1995. On 
February 5, 1997, the School Board defeased the June I, 1990 School District No . 
12 General Obligation Bonds maturing on or after June i, 2001. On August I, 1998, 
the School Board defeased the June i, 1991 School District No . 12 General 
Obligation Bonds maturing on or after March i, 2002. On February i, 1993, the 
School Board defeased the June i, 1980 School District No. 8 General Obligation 
Bonds maturing on or after March i, 1994. For each defeasement an irrevocable 
trust fund was created . New debt was issued and the proceeds were used to 
purchase U .S. Government Securities that were placed in the trust funds. 

The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient 
to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures . For 
financial reporting purposes, the debt is considered defeased and therefore 
removed as a liability from the School Board 's General Long-Term Debt Account 
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group . As of June 30, 1999, the following outstanding bonds are considered 
defeased : 

School District No . 12 
June i , 1984 
June i , 1990 

June i, 1991 
School District NO . 8: 

June i, 1980 

Total 

13 . TAX ARBITRAGE REBATE 

Amount 
Outstandina 

$4,775,000 
6 ,970,000 

14 ,015,000 

1 .130 .000 

$26.8
______ _

90,000 

i~ der the Tax Reform Act of 1986, interest earned on the debt proceeds 
in excess of interest expense prior to the disbursement of the proceeds must be 

rebated to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). For fiscal year 1999, arbitrage 
was not owed to the IRS . 

14 . RETIREMENT PLANS 

Substantially all employees of the School Board are members of two statewide 
retirement systems. In general, professional employees (such as teachers and 
principals) and lunchroom workers are members of the Teachers' Retirement System 
of Louisiana ; other employees, such as custodial personnel and bus drivers are 
memb ers of the Louisiana school Employees' Retirement System . These systems are 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by 
separate boards of trustees. Pertinent information, as required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27, relative to each plan 
follows: 

A . Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana {TRS 

Plan Description : The School Board participates in two memb ership 
plans of the TRS, the Regular Plan and Plan A . The TRS provides 
retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor benefits. Ten 
years of service credit is requ ired to become vested for retirement 
benefits and five years to become vested for disability and survivor 
benefits. Benefits are established and amended by state statute. The 

(continued 
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TRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information of the 
TRS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Teachers' 
Retirement System of Louisiana, Post Office Box 94123, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70804-9123, or by calling (504) 925-6446. 

Funding Policy : Plan members are requ ired to contribute 8.0 percent 
and 9.1 percent of their annual covered salary for the Regular Plan 
and Plan A , respectively . The School Board is required to contribute 
at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 16.5 percent 
of annual covered payroll for both membership plans. Memb er 
contributions and employer contributions for the TRS are established 
by st:ate law and rates are established by the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee. The School Board's employer 
contribution to the TRS, as provided by state law, is funded by the 
State of Louisiana through annual appropriations, by deductions from 
local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the School Board. 

The School Board's contributions to the TRS for the years ended June 
30, 1999, 1998, and 1997, were $]8,023,356, $16,864,348, and 
$15,127,505, respectively, equal to the required contributions for 
each year . 

B . Louisiana School Emnlovees' Retirement System (LSERS 

Plan Description : The LSERS provides retirement benefits as well as 
disability and survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit is 
required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to 
become vested for disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are 
established and amended by state statute. The LSERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and 
requ ired supplementary information for the LSERS. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement 
System , Post Office Box 44516, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804, or by 
calling (504) 925-6484. 

Funding Policy : Plan members are requ ired to contribute 6.35 percent 
of their annual covered salary and the School Board is requ ired to 
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 
6.00 percent of annual covered payroll. Memb er contributions and 
employer contributions for the LSERS are established by state law and 
rates are established by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee. The School Board's employer contribution for the LSERS is 
funded by the State of Louisiana through annual appropriations and by 
remittances from the School Board . 

(continued 
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The School Board's contributions to the LSERS for the years ended June 

30, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were $623,887, $582,460, and $550,410, 
respectively, equal to the requ ired contributions for each year. 

15 . POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

In accordance with State statutes, the School Board provides certain 
continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. 
Substantially all of the School Board 's employees become eligible for these 
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School 
Board . Currently , 805 retirees are eligible to participate in these benefits . 
These benefits for retirees are provided through the State Employees Group 

Benefits Program whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the retirees and 
by the School Board . During fiscal year 1999, the School Board contributed 
62% of the total premium for life insurance and 95% of the total premium for 
health care insurance provided to the retirees. The School Board recognizes 
the cost of providing these benefits (the Board's portion of premiums) as an 
expenditure on a pay-as-you-go basis when the monthly premiums are due. The 
School Board 's cost of providing all health care benefits and life insurance 
premiums to the approximately 3,300 active and 650 retired participating 
employees amounted to $13,991,675 for 1999. For 1999, the cost of premiums 
paid for retirees totaled $3,053,386. 

16 . LEASES 

The School Board has operating lease agreements for the rental of office 
equ ipment and classroom space. Rental expenditures for the year ended June 30, 
1999 are as follows : 

office Equipment 
Classroom Space 

Total 

17 . CDLANGES IN AGENCY DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS 

$233,758 
74,387 

A summary of changes in the School Activity Agency Fund 's deposits due 
others are as follows : 

Balance at Beginning of Year 
Additions 
Deductions 

Balance at End of Year 
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$2,598,285 
12 ,598 ,282 

12 .422 .996 
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St. Tammany Perish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

18 . LITIGATION AND CLA IMS 

At June 30, 1999, the School Board was a defendant in lawsuits 
principally arising from the normal course of operations. The School Board's 
legal counsel has reviewed the School Board 's claims and lawsuits, which 

are primarily personal injury claims, in order to evaluate the likelihood of 
an unfavorable outcome to the School Board and tO arrive at an estimate, if any, 
of the amount or range of potential loss to the School Board. As a result of 
the review, the various claims and lawsuits have been categorized into 
"probable", "reasonably possible", or "remote", as defined by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board . Amounts of claims classified as 
"probable" have been accrued in the claims liability and the liability for 
self-insurance losses, as explained in Note 8, The amount of claims and 
lawsuits which have been classified as "reasonably possible" individually 
range from $3,000 to $i00,000. It is the opinion of the School Board, after 
conferring with legal counsel, that the liability, if any, which might arise 
from these lawsuits would not have a material adverse effect on the 
School Board 's financial position . 

The School Board participates in a number of federal financial assistance 

programs. 
the Single 
financial 
questioned 
disallowed 
the School 

Although the grant programs have been audited in accordance with 

Audit Act through June 30, 1999, these programs are still subject to 
and compliance audits and resolution of previously identified 

costs. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be 
by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although 
Board expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
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St. Tantmany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Year 2000 Issues 

(Unaudited) 

In October 1998, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued 
Technical Bulletin 98-i, Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues. The provisions of 
the GASB technical bulletin , effective for financial statements on which the 
auditor's report is dated after October 31, 1998, require the School System to 
make disclosures about its state of readiness in addressing Year 2000 issues for 
its internal computer systems and equ ipment . On March 29, 1999, GASB issued 
Technical Bulletin 99-I, which amended the previously issued disclosure 
requirements allowing the disclosure to be made in the requ ired supplementary 
information (RSI). "This note is written pursuant to the Year 2000 Information 
and Readiness Disclosure Act, Public Law No. 105-271, 112 Stat. 2386 (1998)." 

The Year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in electric data-processing 
systems and other equipment that may adversely affect operations in the year 1999 
and beyond . 

The following stages have been identified by the GASB as necessary to implement 
a Year 2000-compliant system : 

Awareness Stage - In this first stage, an organization establishes a budget 

and project plan ( for example, a time line or chart noting major tasks and 
due dates) for dealing with the Year 2000 issue. 

Assessment Stage - While in this stage, an organization begins the actual 
process of identifying all of its systems (preparing an inventory) and 
individual components of the systems. An organization may decide to review 
all system components for Year 2000 con~ liance or, through a risk analysis, 
identify only mission-critical systems and equ ipment--systems and equ ipment 
critical to conducting operations to check compliance . 

Remediation Stage - During this stage, an organization actually makes 
changes to systems and equipment. This stage involves the technical issues 
of converting existing systems, or switching to compliant systems . 
Decisions are made on how to make the system or processes Year 2000 
compliant, and the required system changes are made. 

Validation/Testing Stage - At this stage, an organization validates and 
tests the changes made during the conversion process . The development of 
test data and test scripts, the runn ing of test scripts, and the review of 
test results are crucial for this stage of the conversion process to be 
successful. If the testing results show anomalies, the tested area needs 
to be corrected and re-tested . 
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The school system has gone through the GASB stages at various times depending on 
the area being addressed. The school system's Data Processing Department began 
addressiDg Year 2000 problems in 1990. All developments since that time have 
been written to be Year 2000 compliant. School Fund Accounting, Accounts 
Payable, General Ledger, Personnel, Payroll and their ancillary sub-systems have 
all been reengineered , rewritten , tested and implemented prior to 1998. 

The Student Administrative System was originally acquired from another parish . 
All reprogramming for the Student System was completed during fiscal 1999 and 
that software was put into production durins the school system 's Baster break. 
Most of the information for the last qu arter of fiscal 1999 and the school 
closing procedures were all completed on the revised systems. Year 2000 rollover 
testing strategies were prepared during that time and completed in July 1999. 
Hardware platforms have been confirmed compliant and upgraded where necessary. 
All mission critical systems have bee]] addressed. 

In August 1998, the Superintendent formed a Year 2000 Steering Committee. This 
committee was charged with reviewing the Data Processing Department's efforts, 
developing a parish wide effort and communicating results to the School Board . 
The committee developed surveys and instructions for site administrators. The 
committee contacted each site administrator to insure their understanding , and 
to confirm that critical software and hardware, including "embedded chips", had 
been addressed . 

The committee is currently developing contingency plans. Prior to the upcoming 
Christmas break , the site administrators will be sent "Pre-Post" Year 2000 
instructions and a check off sheet to use in assessing their site on January i, 
2000 . 

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the 
success of related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the 
year 2000 and thereafter, management cannot assure that the School Board is or 
will be Year 2000 ready, that the School Board's remediation efforts will be 
successful in whole or in part, or that: parties with whom the School Board does 
business will be year 2000 ready . 
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F IN A N C IA L  STA T E M E N T S 

O F  

IN D IV ID U A L  F U N D S 



 

The G eneral Fund is used to accoun t: for resources traditionally associated w ith 
governm ent w hich are not required legally or by sound financial m anagem ent to be 
accounted for in another fund. 



ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investm ents 

Receivabres: 

Ad valorem taxes 
Intergovernm ental: 

Federal 

State 
Other 

Total receivables 

Due from other funds 

Other 

TOTAL ASSETS 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

GENERAL FUND 

Comparative Balance Sheets 
June 30. 1999 and 1998 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities: 
Salaries and wages payable 

Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 

Accounts payable 

Due to other funds 

Other liabilities 
Deferred revenues 

Total Liabilities 

Equity: 
Fund balance: 

Reserved for encumbrances 

Unreserv ed, undesignated 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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1999 

$35,094,306 

St ~teb'te~ t 3 

1998 

25,627,044 
2,727.097 

572,298 452,010 

56,462 

572,332 

516,324 

1,717,416 

3,926,278 

45,170 

979,698 
281,194 

1.758.072 

4,937,989 

175,100 

~;42j5~ 724 34,225,302 

$15,013,206 
983,879 

2,707,492 

130,701 

135,276 

85,095 

14,206,455 

826,096 

2,476,358 

83,731 

186,663 
92,005 

19,055,649 17,871,308 

171,751 

23.317.324 

208,242 

16,145.752 

23,489,075 16,353.994 

$42,~ Z2A 3~,225,302 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In 
Fund Balance-Budget and Actual 

(NON-GAAP BASIS) 
For the Year Ended June 30~ 1999 

REVENUES (Schedule 3) 
EXPENDITURES (Schedule 4) 

Budget h, otua, I 

$141,239,000 
.
176,_569,523 

142,172,212 
1~ !.75_3,310 

8chedu1~2 

Variance 
Favorable 

(U rL~v o r~tl~le,) 

933,212 
4,816 213 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES ~35,330~  ~ 1,098) 5,749 425 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Other financing sources (Schedule 3) 
Other financing uses (Schedule 4) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

38,161,819 

(2,489,555] 

35,672,264 

39,241,911 

(2489,241) 

36.752,670 

1,080,092 
314 

1,080,406 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 341,741 7,171,572 6,829,831 

FUND BALANCE- AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,145,752 16 14_5,_-'/52 NONE 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
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REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Ad valorern taxes 
Tuition: 
Summer achoo[ 
Driver education 
Earnings on investments 
Medical services 
Other 

ST. "TAMI~AR~ PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

GENERAL FUND 
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) 
For the Year Ended June 30.1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 

Total revenues from local source s 

State sources: 
Equalization 
Contributions to 
Teachers' Ret#ement 
Revenue sharing 
Professional Improvement Program 
Special education 
Adult education 
Non-public students 
"lea chef supply 
Technology 
Salary supplem ent 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues f/ore state sources 

Federal sources: 
Impact aid - PL 81-874 
ROTC 
Adult ed'ocatiort 

Total revenues from federal source s 

Total Teven'~es 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Operating transfers in: 
1966 Sales Tax Fund 
"~977 Sales Tax Fund 
School Food Service Fund 
Indirect costs 

Budge[ Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfayorablo) 

Sche~ule.~3 

1998 
Actual 

$26,189,000 26,534,959 345,959 25,990,794 

110,00O 
55,000 

1,601,000 
225,000 

147,260 
59,9t0 

1,958,052 
255,538 

_  3103~ _24 

37,260 
4,910 

357,052 
30,538 

_  
763~32424 

309,313 
60,650 

1,604,305 
238,415 

28~422,000 _29_~2_74~ 3 852L043 28 142,857 

106,736,966 106,736,966 

147,000 
1,769,000 
1,140,000 
136,000 
232,082 
485,000 
437,392 
680.648 
547,512 

_ ~ 5oo 

157,280 
1,781,976 
1,130,613 
154,657 
232,497 
503,272 
437,392 
860,390 
547,512 
49~ o 

11,288 
265,712 
19.000 

295,000 

11,288 
281,496 

. ~ 2~88o 

3q5~64 

141~23g 000 142~172~2J 2 

20,085,220 
17.725,599 
200,000 
148,000 

Total other financing sources 38~ 8.19 

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ~1.~.,9~=Q0.8~.19 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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20,569,346 
18,309.356 

202,636 
_ 
1_ 60,573 

3 ~9241,911 

10,280 
12,976 
(9,387) 
16,657 

418 
15,272 

(158) 

20,450 

15,784 
(6,120 

9,664 

933,212 

48t,126 
583,757 
2,636 
12,573 

99,195,469 

160,037 
1,721,553 
1,153,762 
139,856 
62,695 
429,464 
408,867 

1,305A47 

. 3~623 

104,636,773 

4,013 
289,201 
7!~267 

334j48~1 

133,11~4L111 

18,932,096 
16,695,508 

197,861 
148,602 

35.974,067 

.~ &L4.t4~?-.~ ,?.,013. 30=4 .1 J59. 0B B._1.7_8 



EXPENDITURES 
Instruction: 
Regular Ed programs: 
Salaries a~d benefits 
Materials and books 
Other 

Total Regular Ed programs 

Special Ed programs: 
Salaries and benefits 
Materials and books 
Other 

Total Special Ed programs 

Vocafional Ed programs: 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

Total Vocational Ed programs 

Olher instructional programs: 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

Total other instructional programs 

Special programs: 
Salaries and benefils 
Other 

Total special programs 

Adult Ed programs: 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

Total Adult Ed programs 

Support Services: 
Pupil support: 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

Total pupil support 

Instructional staff supporl 
Salaries ar,.d benefits 
Materials and books 
Other 

Total instructional staff support 

General administration 
Salaries and benefits 
Professional services 
Other 

Total general administration 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington. Louisiana 

GENERAL FUND 
Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) 
For the Year Ended June 30.1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30.1998 

Bu~igP~ Actual 

$69,262,910 
5,503,440 
50,3"(=0 

7-- 4,816,720 

32,787,005 
90,113 

~ 93 

68,036.019 
4.328.647 

36,55_8 

Vadance  
Favorable 

(Unf~ orable) 

1.226,891 
1,174,793 
13~812 

1998 
Aclual 

64,262,167 
4,391,538 
~ ,88o 

72,401 ~224 2,415p496 68,679~585 

32,463,367 
76,325 
221,339 

33,191,018 32,761,031 

3.790,718 

3~999,7J  

4,416.055 
312,883 

4 722#38 

166,289 
lO,0O9 

240,465 
20,500 

_  
260,965 

117,187,648 

7,506,829 
174~9.75 

3,759,870 
_ _ .~ 22 

3,964 592 

4,386.906 
_  

189,566 

4.567,472 

210.193 
7.754 

217~ 947 

260,494 
39.156 

299.650 

7.151.422 
129,487 

323,638 
13.788 

~ 87 

30.848 
~ 78 

3fi~1126 

23.149 
1~ 317 

155,466 

(23,904) 
2 ~246 

~2L658) 

(20,029) 
1(18~656) 

(38,685) 

2,975~732 

355,407 
45.488 

30.026,036 
83,259 
244,674 

30,353,969 

3,666,964 
1~3~60603 

3t8305~ 56767 

3,047,267 
203~944 

4,!51,211 

162.126 

162.126 

170.606 
3~825 

~ 
1744~ 43131 

t073~5~ 9 

6.537.046 
109,885 

7,681,804 
_ 7~280,909 400~895 6~ 64~ 1 

5,808,050 
458,500 
297j2ZO 

6,563,629 

964,446 
1,138,602 
481"500 

2 ,~ 5~_B 

62 

5,777,478 
394.796 
256~366 

30.581 
63.704 
40,904 

6,428,640 1~ 189 

959,716 
1,102,229 
400,581 

4.736 
36,373 
80,919 

5,489,464 
257,575 
22~726 

5,~ 765 

911,360 
868,407 
541.578 

2,462,526 1~ 2 2~321~285 



Scho01 administration: 
Salaries and benefits 
Olher 

"Folal school administration 

Business administration: 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

Operation and maintenance of plant: 
Salaries and benefits 
Utilities 
Other 

BJ~iget Actual 

$10,126,723 
777,567 

10.118,147 
591,137 

10 90~290 10 709L284 

1,047,023 
3sj ,~oo 

7,475,347 
3,960.000 
3 47=~ ,~s aq~ 

1.039,442 

~ g7~ 4446 

7,449,599 
3,694,354 
3,423~o64 

Total operation and maintenance o1 plant 14~911j150 14'567~017 

P'api~ t~ar~sportatior~. 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

Total pupil transportation 

Central services; 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

3oral central service s 

"total Support Services 

Food service-salaries and benefits 

Community service programs-other 

Facilities acquisition and construe'don: 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

Total facilities acquisition 
and construction 

TotalExpenditures 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Operating transfers out: 
School Food service Fund 
Community Ed,Jcation Fund 
Roofing Construction Fund 
Cerlificate Sinking Fund 
Parishwide Construction Fund 

Total other financing uses 

TOTAL EXPENDI'fURES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 

11,590.319 
649,930 

11,294,193 
39_9~922 

12,240,249 1t,685j115 

1,207,330 
893,736 

1,801,066 

58~095,789 

1,o37,321 

48,675 

168,320 
31,800 

200,120 

t,204,857 
552~989 

!.757~846 

56,288,783 

t,032,479 

33,980 

167,491 
18,681 

186,172 

Variance  
Favorable 
(L~nta~otab[e) 

8,576 
166,436 

196,oo8 

7,581 
3~796 

25,748 
265,646 

344,133 

296.128 
259~ ooo8 

555,134 

2,473 
40~47 

43.220 

1,806,976 

4,942 

14,715 

829 
13,119 

13,948 

Schedule 4 

1998 
A~Lt,~ 

9,692,335 
625~ 952 

10,3!8,287 

1,016,306 
_ 23~7~529 

~,253,635 

7,087,445 
3'571,825 
3.041.708 

14,0000,978 

10,847.314 
343,246 

11,190,562 

1,051,944 
490,907 

1,542,851 

53,248~494 

661,017 

33.879 

146,072 
26,439 

172,511 

176,569,523 171,753,318 4,816~213 161,687,790 

329'555 
120,000 
659,000 
840,000 
550~08 

2,469~555 

$~7~0.~ 0~  
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329,241 314 
120,000 
650,090 
840,OOO 
550~00 

2,469,241 314 

~.8"L6~5?G 

321,617 
120.000 
55t),0b~ 
833,250 
350,000 

2~174,767 

.fi6,3~62,..5.gZ 



 



SP E C IA L  R E V E N U E  F U N D S 

Special R evenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legal- 
ly restricted to expenditure for particular purposes. The School Board m aintains the 
follow ing Special R evenue Funds: 

IM PR O V IN G AM ER ICA'S SCH O O LS A CT 
IND IVID UA LS W ITH  D ISAB ILITIES EDU CATION  A CT 
V O CATIO N AL  ED U CATIO N  
M ISC E LI~ N E O U S P R O G R AM S 
8G  
SCH O O L FO O D  SE RVICE 
1966 and 1977 SALE S TAX FU N D S 
C O M M U N ITY ED U CATIO N  PR O G R AM  



ST. TAM M ANY PARISH SCH O O L BO ARD 
COVINGTON, LO UISIANA 

SPECIAl. REV EN U E FUN D S 

IM PROVIN G A M ERICA 'S SCHOOL A CT 

Improving America's School Act (IASA) is a federally funded program promulgated by Public 
Law (PL) 103-382 which consolidated fourteen programs. ]ASA's purposes are to ensure high 
standards for all students, provide students w ith an em'iched and accelerated educational program , 
provide staff developm ent, and to align the efforts of state and local educational agencies. 

INDIVIDUA LS W ITH DISA BILITIES EDUCATION A CT 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Public Law (PL) 101-476, is a federally 
financed program of free public education in the least restrictive environm ent for children with 
exceptionalities. 

V OCA TION A L EDU CA TION 

The Vocational Education (Voc Ed) Fund is a federally financed program used to expand and 
re prove the agriculture, business, hom e econom ics, m arketing an d industrial arts curriculum . 

M ISCELLAN EOU S PROGRA M S 

The M iscellaneous Program s Fund is used to account for those program s that are anticipated to 
have a short duration. For fiscal year 1999, Arts in Education, Child Search, Starting Points, 
School to W ork, Learn and Serve Am erica, Educate Am erica Act, Tech Prep, N ational Science, 
K-3 Reading and M ath Initiative, and Literary Challenge ar e am ong those accounted for in this fund. 

8-G 

The 8-G Fund is a state program  to provide enhan cem ent to elem entary, secondary and vocational 
program s funded through the State M inim um Foundation Program . 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE FUN D 

The School Food Serv ice Fund accounts for the federal, state an d local funds used for the 
operations of the school cafeterias. 

(continued) 
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ST. TAM M ANY PARISH SCH O OL BOARD 
C ovington, Louisiana 

~PECI A'L REVF.N I )E FI JND ,q (CON TIN UED 

1966 AN D 1977 SALES TAX FUN D S 

The Sales Tax Funds account for the revenues and expenditures of the two per cent tax 
authorized by the voters of St. Tam m any Parish for the School Board. The 1966 tax is dedicated to 
supplem ent other revenues available to the School Board for the paym ent of salaries of teachers and 
other School Board personnel and an y rem aining revenues to he used for the expenses of operating 
the schools. The 1977 tax is dedicated for m aking capital improvem ents to and paying m aintenance 
and operating expenses of the public school system  of th e par ish. The School Board has entered into 
an agreem ent with the St. Tam m an y Par ish Tax Collector for the collection of the tax for a 1.15 per 
cent fee. 

COM M UN ITY EDU CA TION 

The Com m unity Education Fund is a locally funded program  that offers a w ide var iety of 
inform al leisure learning classes and activities for children and adults in St. Tam m any Parish. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Inventory 

TOTALASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Salaries end wages payable 
Accounts payable 
Due to other itmda 
Other liabilities 
Deferred revenues 

Total Liabilities 

Equity: 
Fund balances: 
Reserved for inventory 
Unreserved, undesignated 

Tota~ Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining Balance  Sheet 
June 30,1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for June 30, 1998 

IASA 

$623,966 
430,700 

1,260,281 

Voc 
Ed 

620,749 235,811 
14.577 

Miscellaneous 
prograr0~  8G 

365,498 
25,677 

$36,219 
2.271,091 

17,632 
617,694 

356 
235.455 

7,637 

2,314,947 635j326 235,811 

NONE 

$2,31~.947 

See accompanying ndependent aud ors' report. 

NONE 

635.326 

NONE 

235,81J 

27,508 
355,248 

66,729 
6,145 

Z2.674 

1,218 
71,656 

7~19 

391 175 72,874 

NONE 

3~ .~Z6 

NONE 

72,8Z4 



 

School 
Food Service 

2,448,270 
63,611 
296,847 

25~620 

3.06_8..3.~ 8 

50,466 
112 

29,996 
80.644 

1966 1977 
Sales T~  

4,938 76,964 
1,787,167 1,767,167 

23,394 

J, 7~2-~L.05 .1~88.7. 52.5 

20,551 
1.766.552 

Community 
Education 

169.214 

State, meaL5 

Totals 

3,323,352 
5,357,432 
1,626,921 

4,465,736 
5,202,649 
1,257,558 

240J _Q2 

1.6~2J...4 .1.~ Z.325 J~  

20,551 
389.191 11.732 

174,501 
5,719,731 
29,996 
195.700 

607 
552,046 

6,355,223 
30,318 
207.144 

261,218 1,787,103 409,742 11,732 6 ,1t9,928
_ . 7,145,338 

78,976 

2,726154 5,002 1,477783 

2,807,130 5,002 1477783 

;3.068.348 .1. Z.92. ~ 5 J+887~52~ 

j574~48282 

157,4~ 2 

16_9,2--1..4 

78,976 
4,36~ 2j 

4,447,397 

71,682 
3,949,5525 

4,021,207 
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REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Taxes-sales and use 
Rentals, leases and royalties 
Tuition 
Earnings on investments 
Food service 
Other 

Stale sources: 
Equalization 
Other 

Federat source s 

Totalrevenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
Instruction: 
Regular Ed programs 
Special Ed programs 
Vocational Ed programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 
Adult Ed programs 
Support services: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Operation and m aintenance of plant 
pupil transportation 
Food service  
Community service programs 

Total expenditures 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, .ExpendSures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended June 30,1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,1998 

$1,124 

,t.55rp~39~ 

58,450 

86,369 
3,245,936 

308,609 
602,065 
39,787 
146,716 
12,084 

IDEA 

2.347,42o~ 

2,34L~7~ 

491,804 
381,272 
19,450 
23,655 
127,251 

4,44%()10 2 298.690 

Moo 
Ed 

25
.S,81j  

255J~tB 

241,876 

235 
9,240 
4.468 

265,819 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDFr URES 107,296 48,780 .. 

NO N=E 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out (107,296) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent audilors' report 

~ 107,296) 

NONE 

NONE 

Miscellaneous 
Program s ~G 

17,520 

635,117 
603,617 

~25~.254 

328.986 
276,862 

92,269 
67,656 

28,004 
428,649 

9 

9,532 

839,937 

B~9,93Z 

509,334 

152,247 
128,947 

8,247 
38,981 

2,181 

839.937 

(48~  (4,497) 

~48~  NONE _ (4,497) NONE 

NONE NONE 

NONE NON_E 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 
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School 
Food $crYi~ 

1966 
~ales3-~x 

1977 
~a~sJa~ 

21.529.191 21.529.191 

120.233 82.589 
2.533,021 

14.900 

4,689~348 

B.5~1,020 

9.498.064 

Community 
Educ~,tLon 

Statement 6 

Totals 

:1999 

43.058.382 
16.104 16.104 
661.5o4 661.504 

284.911 
2.533.021 

33,544 

1.183.518 
1.475.o84 
12,451.436 

39,708,390 
11,894 
620,543 
283,966 

2,428,186 
129,856 

1.183.518 
1.813.341 
11.624.628 

2:1.6"~3,760 21,613~260 677~,0~, ~,+~~L~?~ 5~+032,.322 

249,307 

896,770 
1,531,110 
241,876 
280,885 

3,462,733 

837,264 
1,450,967 

249,307 558,095 
176,611 
155,516 

9.499,064 
+ 752~117 _ 752~117 

2,005,399 
874,322 
243,965 
190,295 

3,424,817 
44,812 

787,120 
1,208,710 
518,344 
171,780 
101,551 

8,956,938 
722~360 

9.496.()64 249.367 249.307 752,17 19.844,068 1_9.256 413 

(957,044) 

1,386,744 
(202,636) 

21 361.973 (74,509j .41,853]~66 38,756+909 

95.394 120.000 1,602,138 1,610.357 
(21,362,473) (21.303~32) (43,029.41~ ~9.728.111) 

1,164,108 (21,302,473) (21.208.336) _120,000 (41,427~276~ (38,117.754) 

227.064 

2,580,066 

NONE 153,635 45,491 426,190 639.'155 

5,002 1.324,148 111.991 4~ 0212~ 07 3,38~052 

2~ 30 . 5.002 . 1,477,783 157,482 4....4~447,397 ~.(22~,2,.0~ 
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REVENUES 
Local sources - other 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

IASA Special Revenue Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, end Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended ,June 30. 1999 

EXPENI)ITURES 
Instruction: 
Regular Ed programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 

Support se~ices: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Operation and maintenance o1 plant 
Pupil transportation 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Operating transfers out 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

72 

Budg~ ~ ;tual 

$1,124 
,~.742.2.~35 

Variance 
Favorable 
(UDfawi=ble) 

1,124 

,~.7~ 59 4~556~306 ~! 8Z,05_3) 

60,834 
37,853 

3,378,388 

321,2o3 
626,634 
41,410 
151,662 
1 ? 5~5777 

58,44g 
36,369 

3,245,930 

308,609 
602,065 
39,787 
145,716 

j 2,0~ 4 

2,385 
1,464 

132,458 

12,594 
24,569 
1,623 
5,946 
403 

4,63~  4.~L~9.Q(~9 181,552 

112,798 107,297 (5.501) 

_ ~ (112 7~79~ ) (107,297~ 5,501 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 



REVENUES 
Federal sources 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction-SpeciaIEd program s 
Supportse~ ices: 
Pupilsuppod 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

IDEA Special Revenue Fund 
Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Instructional staff support 
General adm inistration 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Pupil transportation 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS O F REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Operating transfers out 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEG INNING OF YEAR 

FUND r3ALANCE AT END O F YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report 

73 

Budg~ /kcJual 

Statement 8 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unf~yorable) 

$2.5.59.~J 2,&4Z.4ZQ (2~11~9Z1) 

1,367,714 1,255,258 112,456 

535,864 
415,429 
21,192 
25,774 

13#,651 

2.504.624 

491,804 
381,272 
19,450 
23,655 
127,251 

44,060 
34,157 
1,742 
2,119 
11,400 

2,298~690 205,934 

54,817 48,780 (6,037) 

(54,817) {48~'780) 6,037 

NONE 

NONE 

. NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NQNE 



REVENUES 
Federal sources 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Vocational Education Special Revenue Fund 
Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction-Vocational Ed program s 
Support services: 
General adm inistration 
Operation and m aintenance of plant 
Pupil transportation 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Budget Ar~Iu~I 

Statem en t 

Variance 
Favorable 

(U~avorable) 

$275,125 255,819 (19~  

260,148 241,876 18,272 

235 
9,937 
4.805 

235 
9,240 
4,468 

697 
337 

275,125 255,819 !9,306 

NO NE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR _~N~ _~. _ NQNE 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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NONE 

. NONE 



REVENUES 
Local sources-other 
State sources-other 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
instruction: 
Regular Eci program s 
Special Ed programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special program s 

Support services: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Pupil transportation 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Operating transfers out 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Miscellaneous Programs Special Revenue Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALA NCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
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BJJdgct ~:,tua 

$20,000 
804,244 
655,410 

17,520 
635,117 
6036S  

Statement 1~ 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfaye[abl~) 

(2,480) 
(169,127) 
(51,793) 

1,479+65_ 4 1,25-6,25fi (223,400) 

387,490 
324,907 
108,677 
103,480 

33,699 
504,878 

9 
11,227 

328,986 
275,852 
92,269 
87,856 

28,604 
428,649 

9 
~532 

1,474,358 1,251,757 

5,296 4,497 

~5,29~ (4,492) 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

NONE 

58,504 
49,055 
16,408 
15.624 

5,086 
76,229 

1,695 

222,601 

(799) 

799 

NONE 

~ONE 

..J~IO_51E 



REVENUES 
State sources-other 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Lou)siana 

8G Special Revenue Fund 
Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction: 

Regular Ed program s 
Other instructional program s 
Special programs 

Support services: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
Pupil transportation 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS O F REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING O F YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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Budget /k~uaJ 

~;tatem entJ~l 

Variance 
Favorable 

.(U~ '~vorablo) 

$857,824 839,937 ~17,887) 

520,181 
155,489 
131.693 

8,423 
39,811 
2,227 

857,824 

NONE 

NONE 

_NON E 

509,334 
152,247 
128,947 

8,247 
38,981 
2.181 

839 9~ 337 

NONE 

. 
NONE 

~ ONE 

10,847 
3,242 
2.746 

176 
830 
46 

17,887 

NONE 

NONE 

= NO~IE 



REVENUES 
Loca~ so~Jfces: 
Earnings on investments 
Food service 
Other 

State sources - Equalization 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Food service 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

School Food Service Special Revenue Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operaling transfers out 

Total other financing 

sources (uses) 

~ dget h~,tu a 

$120,000 
2,432,000 

10,000 
1,183,518 
4.285.630 

120,233 
2,533,021 

14,900 
1,183,518 
4,689~348 

8,031,148 8,541.020 

9,527.767 

Statem ent J2 

Variance 
Favorable 

~Unf~v~r~ble) 

233 
101,021 
4.900 

=
.403,718 

509,872 

9,498,064 29,703 

.(~1,496,619) ~ ~957,044) 539,575 

1,385,569 
(200,000) 

1,386,744 
(2_q2,63~  

1,185,560 1,184,108 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES (311,059) 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,580,06
_ 6 

FUND BALA NCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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~$ 2.2~~..Q0_7 

227,064 

2,580jQ66 

1,184 
(2,030) 

(1,452) 

538,123 

NONE 

~ Bj 2~ 



REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Taxes-sales and use 
Earnings on investm ents 

Total revenues 

ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

1966 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

EXPENDITURES 
Support services-general administration 

EXCESS O F REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Operating transfers out 

EXCESS O F REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END O F YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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Budget Actua 

$21,045,447 
78.000 

21,529,191 
82,589 

~ta~m cnt 1~ 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavo[abte) 

483,744 

4,582 

21,123,447 21,611.780 488.333 

243,223 249,307 ~ 6,084) 

20,880,224 21,362,473 482.249 

~20,880,224) (21,362,473) (482,249) 

NONE 

5,000 

NONE 

5,0~)2 

~5.002 

NO NE 

2 

2 



REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Taxes-sales and usa 
Earnings on investments 

Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

1977 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

EXPENDITURES 
Support services-general adm inistration 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

$2t,045,447 
_  

78 ooo 

21.123.447 

243.660 

21,529,191 
62.089 

Statem ~nL14 

Variance 
Favorable 

_(tJ~fayor,~bI~} 

483,744 
4,089 

21.611.280 487.833 

249 ,307 (5,647~ 

20,879,787 21,361
.,973 482,186 

95,000 
(20,~ 9,600) 

95,394 

(21,30~Z3~) 
394 

(584,1~2) 

(20,~24,600) (21L2208,338) (583=738~) 

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 
AND OTHER FINANCING USES 255,187 153,635 (101,552) 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,324,149 1,324,1~18 . . ('1) 

FUND BAla NCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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REVENUES 
Locat sources: 
Rentals, leases and royalties 
Tuition 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Com m unity service program s 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
O perating transfers in 

ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Community Education Special Revenue Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 
For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SO URCES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEG INNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report, 

B~ g~ A~u~  

$14,500 
640,000 

654.500 

16,104 
66L504 

677.608 

Statemeat ~5 

Variance 
~EavorabLe 

1,604 
21,504 

23.108 

759~ _000 752 117 6,883 

(104,500) (74,509) 29,991 

120,0q0 120,000 NONE 

15,500 

111,991 

$12L4~  

45,491 

1~1,999t 

J57~482 

29,991 

.N ONE 

29, 9_9~1 



D E B T  SE R V IC E  F U N D S 

The D ebt Service Funds are used to accum ulate m onies for the paym ent of bond 
issues and certifi cates of indebtedness. The bond issues and certifi cates of indebted- 
ness are financed by sales tax collections and special property tax levies on property 
w ithin the territorial lim its of the school district. The School B oard m aintains the fol- 
low ing D ebt Service Funds: 

SAL E S TAX B O N D  SIN K IN G  
SAL E S TAX  B O ND  R ESE RVE 
CER TIFICATES SIN K IN G 
PAR ISH W ID E SCH O OL D ISTR ICT N O . 12 



ST. TA M M AN Y PARISH SCH O O L BOA RD 
CO VIN G TO N, LO UISIANA 

SA LES TAX BON D SIN KIN G 

The Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund is used for the repaym ent of bonds secured by a one percent 
sales and use tax. 

SALES TAX BON D RESERVE 

The Sales Tax  Bond Reserve Fund is used to accum ulate resources for the purpose of paying the 
principal and interest on the bonds secured by a one percent sales an d use tax, that would otherw ise 
be placed in default, as required by the bond agreem ent. 

CERTIFICATES SIN KIN G 

The Certificates Sinking Debt Service Fund is used for the repaym ent of certificates of 
indebtedness secured by an irrevocable pledge of a special General Fund ad valorem  tax of 4.47 
m ills. 

PA RISItW IDE SCHOOL DISTRICT N O. 12 

The Parishw ide School District No. 12 Debt Service Fund is used for the repaym ent of bonds 
secured by unlim ited ad valorem  taxes w ithin the D istrict. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Other 

TOTALASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Due to other funds 

Equity: 
Funrt balances-reserved 
for debt service 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 
June 30, 1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for June 30, 1998 

See accom panying independent auditors' report 
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Sales Tax 
Bond 
S inkin_9 

$572,912 
2,555 

147,249 

Sales Tax 
Bond 

Reserv e 
Certificates 
si~king 

1,850,250 17,518 
23.144 

~Z22~ j 6 /.8.7~  3~4 JL SJ.~ 

23,394 

$722,716 _ 1j850,_000 

SX,22,Zlfi .1.8Y~,. &gA 

16,868 

1L51~ 



 

Parishwide 
School District 

No._]; 

7,751,779 
355,817 

650 

Stat~m~ L~L6 

Totals 

10,192,459 
381,516 
147.899 

~99~ 

10,509,202 
361,789 
156,317 
14.103 

24.044 46,208 

8 108,24~ 10,697,830 lp~995,~203 

8,1.08. 2._&6 =1 ~,721,82~ .1 _t.~)~:L~d 

83 



REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Taxes-ad valorem 
Earnings on investments 

Totalrevenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
Support services-general 
adm inistration 

Debt service: 
Principal retirem ent 
Interest and bank charges 
Issuance cost 
Advance refunding escrow 

Total expenditures 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from bond sale 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Payment to escrow agent 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDJTURES AND 
OTHER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALA NCES AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Sales 
Tax Bond 
Sinking. 

40,989 

1,190,000 
792.661 

1.982.661 

(I ,941,672) 

1.990.000 

1,990000 

48,328 

6Z4,3J 8 

~7~  

Sales 
Tax Bend 

_
9~5 394 

.
95,394 

NONE 

95~ 394 

Certificates 
8Jo~  

1,053 

1 053 

660,000 
184.790 

844 790 

(843,_737~ 

840.000 
(95,394) 

_ (95,394) 840000 

NONE 

1,850,000 

(3,737) 

?0,~ 05 

.1_S,8.6~ 



 

Parishwide 
School District 

No. 12 

11,008,190 
447,526 

11 455,716 

352,644 

5,890,090 
4,996,187 

18,686 
539.953 

Totals 

~tatem ent~  

J~99 

11,008,190 
_  
584962 

10,707,517 
547,74~  

11j593,152 11,255,266 

352,844 326,009 

7,740,000 
5,973,638 

18,686 
539,9

_  6,3 

6,215,000 
5,551.665 

11,797,680 14,625,131 12,092 674 

(341,964) (3,031,979) . (8_37,408) 

14,480.000 

(14 480,000) 

14,480,000 
2,830,000 
(95,394) 

(14,480,000) 

2,822,046 
(143,592) 

NONE 2,7_34,_60.6 2,678454 

(341,964) (297,373) 1,841,046 

8,450,210 10,995,203 9,154,15- 7 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking Debt Service Fund 
Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

REVENUES 
Local sources-earnings on investm ents 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt serv ice: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SO URCES 
Operating transfers in 

EXCESS O F REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALA NCE AT BEGINNING O F YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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Budge1 A~tu~J 

Statem entJ 8 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfav#r~ble) 

_$40,000 _  
40,989 989 

1,190,000 
793 955 

1,983,955 

1,190,000 
792.661 

1,982,661 

1,294 

1,294 

(1,943,955) (1,941,672) 2,283 

1,990 00g 1,990,000 NONE 

46,045 

674 38~  

$720.434 

48,328 

674,388 

722,716 

2,283 

{9 

2,282 



ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Sales Tax Bond Reserve Debt Service Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

$~atern~nt19 

Variance 
Favorable 

REVENUES 
Local sources-earnings on investments $95~0J~0 95,~94 ~94 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Operating transfers out 

EXCESS O F REVENUES OVER 
OTHER FINANCING USES 

95,000 95,_394 (394) 

NONE NONE 

FUND BALANCE AT BEG INNING OF YEAR 
_ 1 850~000 i,850,Q00 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR Sj.B50.0OD ~,85D 0~0~0 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

8"/ 

NO NE 

NONE 

NON~ 



ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Certificates Sinking Debt Service Fund 
Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

REVENUES 
Local sources-earn ings on investments 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service: 
Principal retirem ent 
Interest and bank charges 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY O F REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SO URCES 
Operating transfers in 

DEFICIENCY O F REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SO URCES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEG INNING O F YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END O F YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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BucLget A~tual 

,Statem ent 20 

Variance 
Eayorable 

$1,000 1,053 5.
3 

660,000 
186.990 

660,000 
184.790 

846,990 844,79~ 

2,200 

2,200 

(845,990) (843,737) 2,253 

840,000 840,000 NONE 

(5,990) 

20,605 

$1~615 

(3,737) 

20,605 

.16~868 

2,253 

NO NE 

2,253 



REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Texes-ed valorem 
Earnings on investments 

Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Parishwide School District No. 12 Debt Service Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

EXPENDITURES 
Support services-general administration 
Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 
Issuer~ce cost 
Advance refunding escrow 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from bond sale 
Payment to escrow agent 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

BJ~dgat Actual 

$10,826,388 
425,000 

tl,008,190 
447,526 

1 !,251,388 11,455,716 

352,844 352,844 

5,890,000 
5,004,871 

26,28g 
503,357 

1!,777,361 

5( 5( 5( 5( 5( 5( 5( 5( 5( 5~2 5~  

14,480,000 
(14,480j000) 

NONE 

5,890,000 
4,996,187 

18,686 
539,963 

11.797,680 

,341,964) 

Statement 2.'1 

Variance 
Favorable 

(unfay~ abkd 

181,802 
22,526 

204,328 

8,684 
7,603 

(36,606) 

{20~3319) 

184,0009 

14,480,000 
(14 480.000) 

NONE NONE 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES (525,973) (341,964) 

FUND BALANCE AT ~,EGINN~NG OF "YEAR 8,450,210 8,450,2~0 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report 
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$7,923.237 8,1.06.2.~6 

184,009 

NONE 

:t 8_'~ J)_O9 
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C A P ITA L  P R O JE C T S 

F U N D S 

The Capital Projects Funds account for the district w ide construction and 
im provem ent of public school facilities. Financing has been provided by the proceeds 
from  various sales of general obligation and special revenue bonds, certificates of 
indebtedness, and transfers from  the G eneral Fund and the 1977 Sales Tax Special 

Revenue Fund. The School Board m aintains the following Capital Projects Funds: 

$55 M ILLION CONSTRUCTION 
$50 M ILLION CONSTRUCTION 
C ER TIFICATES C O N STR U CTIO N  
$25 M ILLION CONSTRUCTION 
B U ILD IN G  C O M M ITTEE 
R O OFIN G  CON STR U CTIO N  
PAR ISH W ID E CON STRU CTIO N  



ST. TAM M ANY PARISH SCH O O L BO ARD 
CO VING TO N, LO UISIANA 

CAPITAl, PROJECTS FIEND S 

$55 M ILLION CONSTRUCTION 

The $55 M illion Construction Fund is used to account for the $55 million in bond proceeds for 
the construction and renovation of schools. 

$50 M ILLION CON STRUCTION 

The $50 M illion Constru ction Fund is used to account for the $50 m illion in bond proceeds for 
the construction and renovation of schools. 

CERTIFICATES CON STRU CTION 

The Certificates Construction Fund is used to account for the $6 m illion of certificates of 
indebtedness issued for the construction of Fontainebleau Junior High School. 

$25 M ILLION CON STRUCTION 

The $25 M illion Constru ction Fund is used to account for the $25 m illion in bond proceeds for 
the construction and renovation of schools. 

BUILDIN G COM M ITTEE 

The Building Comm ittee Fund accoun ts for the appropriations from the 1977 Sales Tax Special 

Revenue Fund and is used for unforeseen incidental projects not to exceed $5,000. This fund 
tc,'m inaled in fiscal year 1999. There was no residual equity. 

ROOFIN G CON STRU CTION 

The Roofing Construction Fund is used to account for the appropriation from the General Fund 
to provide for a system atic roofing replacem ent program of school facilities. 

PA RISItW IDE CON STRU CTION 

The Parishwide Construction Fund accounts for the appropriations from the 1977 Sales Tax 
Special Revenue Fund and the General Fund and is used for School Board priorifized constru ction 
lhroughout the school system . 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid items 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

Equity: 
Fund balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Unreserved, undesignated 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 
June 30, 1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for June 30, 1998 

$55 Million 
C;~n,st r~~tion 

$50 Million 
E;onstru~tLon 

$9,483 1,226,102 
54.679,849 

Certificates $25 Million 
ConstructLon 

29.684 7.375,677 

28,594 
84.150 

~5.,t,~~ 9.,322 1,226..1.02- 29.Et~ .7..4~  2,3 

$309,804 
26,623 
87,027 

423,454 

6,269,419 
47996,45459 

54.265,878 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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9,751 
212.263 

223~514 

438.711 
563.8~ Z 

1.0o2~58~ 

3.524 
403.537 
786,085 

. __
3,524 1,189,62_2 

26.160 

2~6 160 

Zg~t~  

891,956 
5,406,643 

6,298,799 



 

Roofing 
Consl[uctiQn 

Parishwide 
Constructio~ 

196.089 2.125.124 

1,500 
12,051 
171.663 

Statement 22 

Totals 

~999 199~ 

10,964,159 
54,679,849 

40,645 
257,313 

20,502,314 

86,937 
186,339 
52,588 

.199.58_9 2, ;3Q6.1~.8 6~& 9~_t.8.6.6 2,0.828.178 

28,596 
72.836 

9,721 
5.250 

761,409 
1,106,581 

88.527 

319,730 
515,502 
65,914 

101,432 14,971 1,956,517 . .
901j146 

13,798 
84,359 

98,157 

199,~  

94,833 
2,199,034 

2,293,867 

7,708,717 
56,276,732 

6,716,232 
13,210,800 

63,985,449 19,927,032 

2.30_8~ &3_8 6~,94"L966 2 Q.B2~.1.]..8 
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REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Earnings on investments 
Other 

Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 

EXPENr)ITURES 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 
Site improvements 
Construction contracts 
Architect and engineers 
Land purchases 
Equipment 
Other 

Debt Service-Bond issuance cost 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Proceeds from bond sales 
Operating transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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$55 Million 
Go~ strucJ[oa 

$50 Million 
CoAs~ ti0n 

$2,266,460 102,691 

2,265,460 102 691 

236,940 
447,938 
684,416 
175,000 

1,270,645 
5,443 

179,200 

2,999,582 

(734,122) 

55.000,000 

1,214,584 
340,364 
90,681 
20,927 
24,215 
5,228 

1.695.999 

~1,593,308) 

Certificates 
Corl~tru;tiQn 

1,658 

1.658 

16,445 

16,445 

$25 Million 
Gonstruction 

630.594 

630.594 

313,340 
9,093,570 
291.961 

162,591 
3.807 

&865.26g 

(9,234.6Z5) 

5~ 0Q0,O00 NONE NONE _ NONE 

54,265,878 

_ 
N O_NE 

$5~..26.,.5~ .7.6 

(1,593,308) 

2,595~896 

.1. O_0.2~J~ 

(14,787) (9,234,675) 

4~947 1~53~474 

26..3.6_g &g.g&Z.~~ 



 

Building 
Dommi~ee 

Roofing 
Coo@'~ru~tion 

18.391 

Parishwide 
CDn str#ctiom 

73,454 
200000 

"rotals 

St~tem~nL a3 

3,092,248 
200,000 

1,221,042 

NONE 18,391 273,454 3,292 248 1,221~ 042 

10,278 

996,792 
63.911 

670 

153,979 
246.738 
27,705 

85,855 
10.608 

1,918,843 
11,125.402 
1,158,674 
195,927 

1,570,029 
25,756 
179,200 

967,800 
7,660,517 
755,761 

92,408 
12,566 

10,278 1,061,373 524.8~  ~6,1.7~.8~3J 9,489,052 

(10,!78) (1,042,982) (251,431) (12,881.583) .{8,268,010) 

NONE 

(10,278) 

10,278 

~ N_OJ~I E 

650,009 

650,000 

(392,982) 

491,!39 

~~&:LSZ 

3,290.090 

.1,299,0~  

1,038,569 

1,2~ 298 

95 

55,009,009 
1,940 000 1,640,000 

56. ~ ~L0~00D 1,640,0p0 

44,058,417 (6,628,010) 

!9~927_032 26.555~042 

:tg~;LT.J&~  



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

$55 Million Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 

(Non-GAAP Basis) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

REVENUES 
Local sources-earnings on investments 

EXPENDITURES 
Facilities acquisition and construction 
Site im provem ents 
Construction contracts 
Architects and engineers 
Land purchase 
Equipm ent 
Other 
Bond issuance cost 

Total expenditures 

Budg~ 

Scbe~ule2~ 

Variance 
Favorable 

/kclual (Unfav~iabteJ 

$2,~ 000 2j265.46_0 460 

400,000 
13,500,000 
1,985,000 
900,000 

2,000,000 
5,000 

182,682 

236,940 
6,224,056 
1,008,460 
175.oo0 

1,439,9o2 
5,443 

179.200 

163,060 
7,275,944 
976,540 
725,000 
560,098 

(443) 
3,482 

18,9~ 682 9,269L001 9L7C)3,681 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (16,707.682) (7,003,541) 9,704,141 

OTHER FINANCING SO URCES 
Proceeds from bond sales 55,000.00Q0 55.000,000 . NONE 

EXCESS O F REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 38,292,318 47,996,459 9,704,141 

FUND BALANCE- AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE- AT END O F YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

96 

NONE NONE NONE 

$38.292.316 ~47~996~&59 9~704.141 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

$50 Million Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
(Non-GAAP Basis) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

REVENUES 
Local sources-earnings on investments 

EXPENDITURES 
Facilities acquisition and construction 
Site improvements 
Construction contracts 
Architects and engineers 
Land purchase 
Equipment 
Other 

Total expenditures 

B'Jdg~ 

Schedule 25 

Variance 
A~ual Eavorable 

$95.,0J20 102,~91 7,691~ 

1,050,000 
700,O0O 
125,000 
25,000 
60,000 

_  
72500 

938,032 
389,286 
113,049 
20,927 
24,215 

~  
5,228 

1,967~50q 1 490,737 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,872,500) (1,388,046) 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

9? 

1.951,923 1,951,923 

$]_9,42~3 ~63.8.7=7 

111,988 
310,714 
11,951 
4,073 
35,785 
2,272 

476,763 

484,454 

NONE 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Certificates Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
(Non-GAAP Basis) 

For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

REVENUES 
Local sources-earnings on investments 

EXPENDITURES 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 
Construction contracts 
Equipm ent 
Other 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEG INNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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Budget ~ tu~ 

$~,500 J ,658 

12,000 
13,000 
1,002 

26.002 

(24,502) 

~4,592 

.NONE 

Sct]edule26 

Variance 
Favorable 

158 

12,000 
13,000 
j ,Oo2 

_  
NO NE 26,002 

1,658 

2~,5~2 

2~160 

26,160 

_NONE 

26,160 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

$25 Million Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, end 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget end Actual 
(Non-GAAP Basis) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

REVENUES 
Local sources-earnings on investments 

EXPENDITURES 
Facilities acquisition and construction 
Site im provem ents 
Construction contracts 
Architects ~nd engineers 
Equipment 
Other 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALA NCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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B~ g~t 

Variance 
Favorable 

E,~ua~ (Unlavorable) 

$5~0,0~Q 6~).,594 4O.594 

500,000 
4,500,000 
750,000 
175,000 
j ?,oo0 

5,937,000 

313,340 
4,006,077 
233,485 
209,931 

_  3,80~  

4,766,640 

186,660 
493,923 
516,515 
(34,931) 
8,1~3 

1,!70,360 

(5,347,000) (4,136,046) 1,210,954 

_ 9~542,889 9,542~ 889 

~,.~lg~%~L~  ~,.~0.~8_43 

NONE 

J,2..tO,9_F%  



REVENUES 
Local sources-earnings on investm ents 

EXPENDITURES 
Facilities acquisition and construction 
Construction contracts 
Architects and engineers 
Other 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Roofing Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 
(Non-GAAP Basis) 

For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Operating transfers in 

Bua.g~l Act~  

~chedu~ 2~ 

Variance 
FavQrabJe 

1,o00,o00 
80,000 
2,o00 

977,933 
62,626 

670 

3.0BR,~ Q LO~ .~ 9 

(1,064,000) (1,022,838) 

22,067 
17,374 
1,330 

4Q,771 

41.162 

650,0~)J) 65D,0~ ) NONE 

DEFICIENCY O F REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES (414,000) (372,838) 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' reporL 

I00 

45L _19Z 

$4~%19Z 

457,19~ 

41,162 

NONE 

&l~  62 



REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Earnings on investments 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Facilities acquisition and construction 
Site im provem ents 
Construction contracts 
Architects and engineers 
Equipment 
Other 

Total expenditures 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Parishwide Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
(Non-GN kP Basis) 

For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Schedu/e2~ 

Variance 
Budget Actual Eayorable 

$60,000 

260..00D 

575,000 
1,775,000 
100,000 
200,000 
17,500 

73,454 13,454 
20Q.O00 

27~.~154 ~3~ 4 

175,224 
273,182 
35,159 
104,536 
10,608 

399,776 
1,501,818 

64,841 
95.464 
5,892 

2,667.500 598,709 2,068.791 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (2,407,500) (325,255) 2,082,245 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Operating transfers in 1.29Q.090 1.290.0Q0 NONE 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,117,500) 964,745 2,082,245 

FUND BALANCE AT BEG INNING O F YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

]01 

1,234,289 1,234,289 

$:L!6.]89 2.199.034 

NO NE 

2,082L245 
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IN T E R N A L  SE R V IC E  F U N D S 

Internal Service Funds are used to accum ulate resources to pay the claim s and 

judgem ents against the School Board's governm ental funds. 

W O R K E R S' C O M PE N SAT IO N  FU N D  

The W orkers' Com pensation Internal Service Fund accounts for the accum ula- 
tion of resources for and the paym ents of benefits under the School B oard's self-insur- 
ance program  for w orkers' com pensation. 

R ISK M A N AG EM EN T FU N D 

The R isk M anagem ent Internal Service Fund is used to account for and finance 
the School Board's uninsured risks of loss arising from  general liability and property 

dam age claim s. 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 
Liability for 
serf-insurance  losses 
Claims liability 

Total Liabilities 

Equity: 
Retained Earnings: 
Reserved for employee benefits 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE 
NTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 
June 30, 1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for June 30, t998 

W orkers' 
C ompems allo~ 

$1.951.305 
57.861 

Risk 
Ma~aag~m.ent 

3.088,500 
25,321 
4.592 

Totals 

,Statement ;~o 

~999 

5,039,805 
83,182 
4.592 

4,590,181 
91,947 
1~,~25 

$14,363 

1.181.884 

1.195.247 

812,919 

8j 2 91~  

$2j~gj.~  

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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13,684 

405,361 

gOD.000 

319 045 

1,799,368 

1.799.368 

28,047 

405,361 

1,181,884 
900.000 

11,349 
1,252 

405,361 

955,389 
goo,ooo 

2,515,292 2 273~ 35~  

812,919 
1,799,368 

2~12,287 

~,~2Z.57~ 

959,123 
1,463,779 

2,422~902 

~696.253 



OPERATING REVENUES 
Em ployercontributions 
Insurance proceeds 

Total operating revenues 

ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOO L BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

PRO PRIETARY FUND TYPE 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Com bining Statem ent of Revenues, Expenses , and 
Changes in Retained Earnings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
W ith Com parative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 

O PERATING EXPENSES 
Contractual services 
Prem ium paym ents 
Benefit Payments 
Claim s 

Increase (Decrease) in provision for 
self-insurance losses 

Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

W orkers' 
C~m pe~sa it~o~ 

Risk 
M an&ge~ nt 

Statem ent 31 

Totals 

_199~ 1998 

$1,443,456 1,504,506 2,947,962 

1.443.456 1.504.506 2.947.962 

56,665 
129,120 

1,266,378 

226.495 

1.678.658 

149,165 
577.972 

580.853 

7,715 

1.315.705 

205,830 
707,092 
266,378 
580.853 

226,495 
7.7t5 

2,9
_ 9_4_, _36 3 

2,712,818 
18,834 

2,731,652 

200,353 
833,356 

1,106,116 
496.914 

172,624 
9,021  

2,
_818j384 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (235,202) 188,801 (46,461) (86,732) 

NO N-O PERATING REVENUES 
Earnings on investm ents 

NET INCOME (LOSS) 

88,~ 98 146.788 235,786 

(146,204) 335,589 189,385 

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 959.123 1.463.779 

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR ~;812,9j9 ~ 799,368 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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2,422 902 

2~61~ 2&7 

233,990 

147,258 

2,275,644 

-2 42~,902 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE 
NTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1998 

CASH FLOW S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from employer 
contributions 
Insurance proceeds 
Cash payments for: 
Benefits end claims 
Insurance premiums 
Other 

Net cash provided by 
operating activities 

CASH FLOW S FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Earnings on investments 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
BEGINNING O F YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
END OF YEAR 

W orkers' 
C.~ ]~ nsation 

Risk 
Management 

~tatement ~32 

Totals 

1,9~9 1998 

$1,443,456 1,514,039 2,957,495 

(1,252,134) 
(129,120) 
~ 56~65~ 

(579~1) 
(577,972) 
J1~ 880) 

(1,831,785) 
(707,092) 

_(213~545J 

2,828,599 
18.834 

(1,661,481) 
(833,356) 

_(209,524 ) 

5.537 199,536 205,073 193,072 

92~987 

98.524 

151,564 

351,100 

1,852,781 2,737,400 

244,551 

449,624 

4.590.181 

222L!46 

415,218 

4,174,963 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Increase (decrease) in provision for 
self insurance losses 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Decrease in receivables 
Increase (decrease) in payables 

Net cash provided by 
operating activities 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 

($235,202) 188,801 (46,401) (86,732 

105 

226.495 

14,244 

_ $_5_ .537 

9,533 
1,202 

226,495 

9,533 
15.446 

172,624 

115,781 
(8,601) 

199,536 205.073 193,072 
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The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held by the School Board as an 
agent for others. 

SC H O O L A C TIV ITY FU N D  

The activities of the various individual school accounts are accounted for in the 
School A ctivity Fund. W hile the accoun ts are under the supervision of the School 
B oard, they belong to the individual schools or their student bodies and are not avail- 

able for use by the School B oard. 



ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

SCHOOLACTIVlTY AG ENCY FUND 

Comparative Balance Sheet 
W ith Totals for June 30. 1999 and June 30. 1998 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits due others 

See accom panying independent auditors' report 
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S~atement :~3 

TOTALS 

!99~9 1998 

$1,735,692 2,598,285 
. 
1,037~ 87 9 

. _  

$2,~  ~5j-j 2,59&265 

$2,7~3.5]3 2,598,285 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 

TOTAL ASS['TS 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits due others 

ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AG ENCY FUND 

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Balance 
July 1,399_8 A~di~Jons Deductions 

$2,598,285 10,745,546 
1.852.736 

11,608,139 
814.857 

Staternen'~ 34 

Balance 
June ~0, 1999 

1,735,692 

% 037.879 

$2,598.285 12.5~8.282 .12.422L996 2,773.57J 

$2~598~285 12,598,282 12j422,996 2.773,571 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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School 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

M andeville Kindergarten 
Abita Springs Elementary 
Abney Elementary 
Alton Elementary 
Bayou W oods Elementary 
Bonne Eoole Elementary 
Brock Elementary 
Chahta-lma Elementary 
Covington Elementary 
Cypress Cove Elementary 
Florida Ave, Elementary 
Folsom Elementary 
Honey Island Elementary 
Lyon Elementary 
Madisonvllle Elementary 
Mandeville Elementary 
Pontchartrain Elementary 
Riverside Elementary 
W hispering Forest Elementary 
W oodlake Elementary 
Covington Special Ed. 
Abita Springs Middle 
Bayou Lacom be M iddle 
Carolyn Park M iddle 
Little Oak M iddle 
Mandeville Middle 
Pine View M iddle 
Schoen, C.J M iddle 
Tchefuncte M iddle 
Boyet Jr. High 
Clearwood Jr High 
Fifth W ard Jr. High 
Folsom Jr, High 
Fontainebleau Jr. High 
Lee Road Jr. High 
Madisonville Jr. High 
Mandeville Jr. High 
Pearl River Jr. High 
Pitcher Jr High 
St Tam m any Jr High 
Sixth W ard Jr High 
Slidell Jr High 
Covington High 
Fontainebleau High 
Mandeville Hi9h 
Northshore High 
Pearl Rive; High 
Salm en High 
Slidell High 

TOTAL 

SCHOOLACTIVITY AGENCY FUND 

Schedule of Changes in Deposits 
By School 

For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Balance 
July 1, 
1998 Additions Decluctions 

$13,483 
23,730 
30,719 
1,936 
6,299 
23,756 
14,477 
4,895 
82,099 
31,966 
29,852 
8,379 
26,609 
28,695 
26,054 
30,938 
65,644 
14,008 
20,126 
11,335 
607 

24,988 
10,681 
30,473 
6,084 
76,418 
2,759 
13,959 
38,533 
71,243 
34,637 
46,113 
14,615 
61,039 
25,076 
24,425 
58,968 
31,415 
22,968 
73,722 
22,223 
127,9o4 
262,480 
21o,602 
219,918 
159,443 
78,599 
207,437 
145,958 

$2,598,285 

See accom panying independent auditors' report 
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60,976 
57,847 
151,523 
18,475 
82,640 
141,037 
33,680 
35,678 
194,526 
119,891 
67,816 
68,525 
111,860 
102,372 
84,159 
186,526 
313,645 
59,624 
82,584 
280,614 
8,516 
82,686 
26,658 
151,216 
198,599 
345,784 
56,549 
59,540 
230,137 
150,462 
146,857 
138,715 
76,471 
203,888 
154,388 
117,934 
262,172 
87,644 
179,192 
169,108 
105,186 
531,050 
837,134 
895,551 

1,515,696 
1,177,971 
428,100 
687,600 

1.319,480 

65,150 
62,326 
147,702 
18,982 
80,853 
130,522 
33,647 
35,501 
211,542 
111,755 
63,654 
61,969 
118,778 
102,891 
99,601 
155,25g 
296,996 
59,123 
75,524 
243,464 
6,471 
85,374 
27,372 
154,219 
189,997 
337,164 
51,125 
61,873 
210,871 
146,715 
146,276 
134,439 
77,339 
220,273 
156,529 
127,356 
256,853 
90,873 
174,915 
187,631 
69,618 
514,389 
821,277 
885,842 

1,503,374 
1,159,271 
436,828 
710,441 

1,276,852 

Schedule 35 

Balance 
June 30, 
1999 

9,309 
19,251 
34,540 
1,429 
8,086 
34,271 
14,510 
5,072 
65,083 
40,102 
34,014 
14,935 
19,691 
28,176 
10,412 
62,205 
80,293 
14,509 
27,186 
48,485 
2,652 
22,300 
9,967 
27,470 
14,666 
85,036 
6,183 
11,826 
57,799 
74,990 
33,218 
50,389 
13,747 
44,654 
22,935 
15,003 
64,287 
28,166 
27,245 
55,199 
37,791 
144,565 
276,337 
220,311 
232,240 
178,143 
69,871 
184,596 
186.584 

~2.596.262 12,422.996 2.773,5].1 
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G E N E R A L  F IX E D  A S SE T S 

A C C O U N T  G R O U P  

This account group is used to account for the general fixed assets of the 

School B oard. 



General fixed assets: 
Land 
Buildings and im provements 
Furniture and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Total general fixed assets 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets- By Source 
June 30. 1999 

nvestment in general fixed assets from : 
General and Capital Projects Funds 
IASA funds 
Vocational education funds 
Other funds 

Total investment in general fixed assets 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

i11 

$6,031,030 
211,299,727 
39,043,302 
12,177,077 

~;266~55j ., t36 

$258,899,280 
4,178,582 
1,077,089 
4,405,185 

$26B,55~ 3B 



Eun~ on 

Support services: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business and central services 
Operation and maintenance  of plant 
Pupil transportation 

Total support services 

Construction in progress 

Total general fixed assets 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets-By Function 
June 30. 1999 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

L~o~ 

$5,943,103 

50,000 
37,927 

Buildings 
and 

lml~r_oYe merits 

112 

206,763,606 
1,497,860 
613,151 

1,241,583 
1,183,527 

$~hedul&$7 

Furniture 
and 

EquJ.En~nt Tota 

26,542,906 
479,413 

3,614,591 
4,310,914 
3,786,915 
308.563 

239,249,615 
1,977,273 
4,227,742 
5,602,497 
5,008,369 
308,563 

256,374.059 

12,17~ 77 

$ 2.6.8.&Sl .l.&6 



Old RosenwaldoMandeville, La 
Abita Springs Elementary 
Abila Springs Middle 
Abney Elementary 
Alton Elementary 
Bayou Lacombe Junior 
Bayo~ W oOds Etement~ry 
Bonne Ecole Elementary 
Boyet Junior 
Brock Elementary 
Carolyn park Middle 
Chab.ta tma Elementary 
Clear'wood Junior 
Covington Annex 
Covington Elementary 
Covington High 
Covington Special Ed. Center- 
Harrison Curriculum Center 

Covington W arehouse- 
Covington Educational Center 

Cypress Cove Elementary 
8th W ard Junior 
Florida Avenue Elementary 
Folsom Elementary 
Fotsom Junior 
Fontainebleau High 
Fontainebleau Junior High 
Honey Island Elementary 
Lee Road Junior 
Little Oak Middle 
Lyon Elementary 
Madisonville Elementary 
Madisonvi~le Junior 
Mandevilte Elementary 
Mandeville High 
Mandeville Junior High 
Mandeville Kindergarten 
Mandevilte Middle 
Magnolia Trace Elementary 
Northshore High 
Operation Jumpstart 
Pearl River High 
Pearl Rwer Junior High 
Pine V~ew Middle 
Pitcher. W rn Junior High 
Pontchartrain Elementary 
Riverside Elementary 
St. Tammany Junior High 
Slidell Curriculum Center 
Slidell Pupil Appraisal 

Salmen High 
Schoen, C,J. Middle 
School Board Of 6ce 
6th W ard Junior 
Slidell Annex 
Slidell High 
Siidell Junior High 
Slidell Support Facility 
Slidell W arehouse 
Tchefuncte Middle 
W hispering Forest Elementary 
W oodlake Elementary 
Other 

"[OTAL 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 
Schedule of General Fixed Assets-By Location 

June 3g. 1999 

10.000 

60,120 
15,500 
24,000 
6,642 

336,001 
160,000 
46,807 

58,000 
20.000 
2,658 
16,090 
2,289 
66,386 
16,500 

113 

Buildings 
and 

lmpE~v~ments 

6,189,332 
3,828.022 
1.859,000 
5,337,880 
5.927,917 
2,972,207 
5,522,000 

763,860 
6,820,486 
2,187,776 
1,028,021 
4,545,582 
82,000 

10,142,812 
6,587,644 
153,438 
158,321 

6,068,410 
2,896,660 
2,233,729 

2,goo 

Schedule 3g 

Furniture 
and 

Equipment Total 



Function 

Supporl services: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business and central services 
Operation and maintenance of p~nt 
Pupil transportation 

"total support services 

Construction in progress 

Total general fixed assets 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets-By Function 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Balance 
J~J.v "L 199J) Additions D~  u#iions 

$229,441,777 
1,915,869 
4,038,311 
5,107,067 
4,676,936 
298,01

.
1 

10,193,342 
63,675 
203,915 
511,250 
360,639 
10.552 

245.477.971 11.343.373 

5.717.334 12.021.664 

114 

385,504 
2,271 
14,484 
15,820 
29.206 

447,285 

_55,~61921 

&O~&2-,.O~ 

Schedule_39 

Balance 
June.%). J 999 

239,249,615 
1,977,273 
4,227,742 
5,602,497 
5,008,369 
308,563 

256,374,059 

12,177,0077 

26&,SEdJ~ . 
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Fiscal Regular Ed 
Year Programs 

1990 $42,900.676 
1991 47,068,409 
1992 51,890,115 
1993 46,931,281 (1 
1994 49,476~931 
1995 54,674,839 
1996 57,176,090 
1997 62,538,271 
1998 68.662,667 
1999 72.433.920 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

General Fund Expenditures by Function 
Last "fen Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Special Ed 
Program s 

$12,035,252 
13,433,528 
15,928,025 
17,156,796 
19,221,373 
21,853,260 
24,119,662 
27,462,174 
30,353,316 
32.754.851 

Other 
Programs 

$132,445 
179,180 
195.202 

4,602,657 (1 
5,204.179 
6,125,842 
6,693,220 
7,357,686 
8,303,694 
9,027,966 

Pupil 
Support 
Services 

$3,058,066 
3,705,155 
4,236,496 
4,359,334 
4,621,72g 
5,216,295 
5.474,147 
6,050,112 
6,650,424 
7,281.105 

1) Beginning in 1993, the Louisiana State Department of Education 
reclassified the reporting of certain expenditures 1o comply with 
the U, S. Department of Education requirements. 
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Instructional 
Staff General School Business 
SuppOFl Adrmrdat r~tion Administration Administration 

$1.758,051 
2,117,557 
2,132,928 
3,851.302 (1 
4,315.790 
4,825.474 
4,938,319 
5,519,268 
5,966,842 
6,432,566 

$1.535,347 
1,660.284 
1,656.027 
1,679,544 
2,076,696 
2,021,695 
2,566,886 
2,308,558 
2,316,068 
2,465,956 

$5,986,219 
6,383,830 
6,945,273 
6,807,562 
7,255,193 
8,192,367 
6,740,377 
10,099,169 
10,401,807 
10,721,643 

$696,643 
726,010 
767,379 
809,538 
876.266 

1,059.538 
1.096.043 
1.149.804 
1,262,376 
1,399.455 



Operation and 
M aintenance of Pupil 

Plant ]r~13~p~rtation 

$8,179,066 
8,996,274 
9,564,734 
9,817,983 
10,408,114 
11,595,233 
12,408,116 
13,285,388 
14,022,575 
14,563,643 

$6,230,518 
6,969,586 
7,628,144 
7,949,159 
8,279,239 
8,924,263 
9,678,857 
10,628,069 
11,190,562 
11,684,723 

Cent~ l 
ActivJ~ s 

$967,061 
909,479 

1,069,425 
914.315 

1,393.556 
1,118,305 
1,253.259 
1.394,746 
1,535.856 
1,758.373 

Food 
Semite 

$386,562 
479,769 
534,686 
224,944 
643.288 
690,666 
752,614 
872.370 
881.017 

1,032,479 

Community Facilities 
Service Acquisition and 
P~og[am s Cn~str~ J~  Debt Service 
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$19.605 
17,893 
15,807 
17,826 
28,911 
27,064 
36,788 
37,885 
33,879 
33,969 

$1,120,298 
1,004,621 
171,347 
119,329 
103,234 
154,225 
145,711 
556.912 
201,684 
199.161 

$256,986 
103,632 
146,942 
124,796 
41,283 
67.724 

$85,262.795 
93,755,207 
102,884.530 
105,566,333 
113,945.892 
126,546,790 
135,080.089 
149,160.412 
161,774.767 
171,789,801 



Fiscal 
Year 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

General Fund Revenues by Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Ad Valorem 
Taxe~ Tuition 

$14,073,893 
14,807,912 
14,774,495 
15,927,847 
17,190,593 
19,032,717 
20,124,363 
24,177,250 
25,990,794 
26.534.959 

$194,671 
153,709 
131,280 
127,440 
125,251 
149,401 
147,340 
154,412 
169,963 
207.170 

Earnings on 
Inve~tm a,J~  Other EQualization 

$1,242,729 
725,980 
416,033 
305,332 
431,975 
805,002 

1,102,542 
1,375,408 
1,604,305 
1.958.052 
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$370,155 
374,635 
273,598 
440,930 
364,158 
427,091 
429,438 
446,336 
377,795 
573,862 

$49,897,679 
54,505,644 
60,286,621 
63,351,967 
69,921,213 
76,660,386 
81,569,868 
92,312,015 
99,195,469 
106.736.966 

Contributions 
to Teachers' 
Betir~ ment 

$1,247,866 
199,525 
253,829 
223,120 
202,627 
190,291 
178,803 
169,212 
160,037 
157.280 



 

State Sou 

Revenue 
Sharirjg 

$1,458,168 
1,496,535 
1,510,416 
1,514,148 
1,541,151 
1,569,300 
1,650,879 
1,631,845 
1,721,553 
1.781.976 

Professional 
Improvement 
Program O3.b~[ 

$1,509,299 
1,445,831 
1,411,729 
1,393,496 
1,332,784 
1,292,745 
1,256,489 
1,200,771 
1,153,762 
1.130.613 

$589,026 
792,855 
690,476 
785,952 

1,205,323 
2,176,624 
642,343 

1,069,436 
2,405,952 
2,785,670 

Table 2 

Federal 
$gu[ge~ Total 

$378,668 
423,513 
414,764 
265,412 
265,425 
347,557 
252,740 
267,077 
334,481 
305.664 
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$70,962,154 
74,926,139 
80,163,241 
84,335,644 
92,580,500 
103,651,114 
107,354,805 
122,803,762 
133,114,111 
142,172,212 



Fiscal 
Year 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

Total Tax 
L~vy 

$20,319,888 
21,009,132 
21,724,940 
22,249,929 
24,221,576 
26,111,200 
28,304,369 
33,989,981 
37,323,704 
37,921,259 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Property Tax I.evies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Current Year 
Tax Levy 

Colt~ tLons (1) 

$18,793,780 
19,786,930 
29,067,618 
21,238,827 
23,031,420 
25,686,081 
27,432,575 
32,981,367 
35,451,881 
36.371,394 

Percentage 
of Tota] Current 

Current Year Year 
Total Tax Collections Outstanding 

$20,039,064 
21,084,552 
21,030,223 
22,499,923 
24,272,958 
26,881,093 
28,419,028 
34,136,248 
36,698,311 
37.543.149 

(1) Source: St. Tammany Tax Collector's Office 
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92.5% 
94.2% 
92.4% 
95.1% 
95.1% 
98.4% 
96.9% 
97.0% 
95.0% 
95.9% 

$1,526,108 
1,222,202 
1,657,322 
1,011,102 
1,190,155 
425,t19 
871,794 

1,008,614 
1,871,823 
1.549.585 

~able 3 

Percentage of 
Current Year 
Outstanding 
~axes to 
Tax.Levy 

7.5% 
5.8% 
7.6% 
4.5% 
4.9% 
1.6% 
3.1% 
3.0% 
5.0% 
4.1% 



FJsca 
Year 

Real Estate 
Assessed 
Value 

1990 $355,038,746 
1991 358,244,887 
1992 367,269,774 
1993 374,560,203 
1994 398,500,999 
1995 420,818,901 
1996 453,039,166 
1997 532,174,889 
1998 573,279,924 
1999 583.140.747 

Commeroia 
and Other 
Pro pe~y 
Assessed 
Y~ e 

$81,964,860 
89,487,870 
93,337,772 
95,970,349 
104,160,566 
115+744,760 
124,016,650 
134,343,983 
147,820,260 
160,875,374 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOLBOARD 
Cevington, Louisiana 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudiled) 

Total 
Assessed 
Value 

$437,003,606 
447,732,757 
460,607,546 
470,530,552 
502,661,475 
536,563,661 
577,055,816 
666,518,872 
721,100,184 
744.016.121 

Source: St Tammany Parish Assessor's Office 

Homestead 
Exemption 

.V~Jue 

$199,066,524 
201,720,288 
206,198,073 
215,077,907 
224,572,278 
236,779,583 
252,091,848 
276,278,015 
292,584,805 
308,640,221 
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Total 
Assessed 
Value 
Taxed 

$237,937,082 
246,012,469 
254,409,473 
255,452,645 
278,089,197 
299,784,078 
324,963,968 
390,240,857 
428,515,379 
435,375,900 

Total 
Estimated 
Aalual 
Yalue 

$4,096,819,860 
4,045,101,470 
4,155,034,513 
4,246,180,037 
4,534,965,530 
4,829,278,397 
5,201,903,433 
6,058,688+723 
6,552,878,573 
6,733,548,083 

Table 4 

Percentage of 
Total Assessed 
Value to Total 
Estimated 

ActuaLValue 

10.7% 
11.1% 
11.1% 
11.1% 
11.1% 
11.1% 
11.1% 
11.0% 
11.0% 
11.0% 



Fiscal 
Year 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Property Tax Rates (per $1.000 of Assessed Valuation) 
All Direct and Overlapping Governments 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

School Board 
MilJage 

85.41 
85.41 
85.41 
87.10 
87.10 
87.10 
87.10 
87.10 
87.10 
87.1o 

Governments (Parishwide) 

Police Jury 
M~lage 

17.83 
17.83 
17.83 
18.35 
18.35 
18.35 
18.35 
20.82 
17.76 
17.76 

Source: Respeclive Taxing Jurisdiction 

Law 
Enforcement 

12.58 
12.58 
12.58 
12.94 
12.94 
12.94 
12.94 
12,94 
12.94 
12.94 
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Assessor 
IVlJH~ e 

3.12 
3.12 
3.12 
3.21 
3.21 
3.21 
3.21 
3.21 
3.05 
3.05 

City of 
Abita Springs 

Mill~g~ 

18.17 
18.17 
18.17 
19.18 
19.18 
19.18 
19.18 
19.70 
15.72 
15.72 



 

City of 
Covington 
M illage 

20.60 
20.60 
20.60 
19.60 
18.60 
18.25 
26.80 
24.55 
24.55 
24.55 

Other Governments (Special Districts) 

City of 
Madisonville 
Millage 

15.46 
13.32 
12.30 
12.80 
13.80 
11.30 
11.30 
11.52 
11.52 
11,52 

City of 
Mandeville 
MJll~ga 

18.95 
18.95 
18.95 
18.25 
18,25 
19.18 
17.95 
17.60 
17.30 
16.95 

City of 
Pearl River 
MJll~aga 
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5.83 
5.83 
5.83 
5.83 
5.83 
5.83 
5.83 
5.83 
5.83 
5.83 

Eable~5 

City of 
Slidell 
Millage Other 

36.91 
36.38 
36.51 
36.44 
35.11 
33.93 
33.93 
37.54 
37.04 
36,62 

322.98 
351,84 
354.95 
393.83 
395.64 
398.52 
428.28 
433.18 
437.70 
437.84 



Taxpayer 

Central La. Elec. Co. 
BellSouth Comm unications 
First National Bank of Com merce 
Hibernia National Bank 
EPIC Development 
W ash.-St Tam many Elect. 
La. Gas Services Co. 
Southern Natural Gas 
Sizeler North Shore Lim ited 
McKesson Corp. 

ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Principal Taxpayers 
June 30, 1999 
(Unaudited) 

Utility 
Telephone 
Bank 
Bank 
Real Estate 
Utility 
Utility 
Pipeline 
Real Estate 
W arehousing 

Source: St. Tam many Parish Assessor's Office 
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Fiscal Year 
1999 

Assessed 
Yaluatiea 

$26,065,050 
19,570,150 
7,488,850 
6,415,360 
3,873,640 
3,477,510 
3,435,840 
2,842,060 
2,580,650 
2.173.580 

Tabl~6 

Percentage 
of Total 
Assessed 
~/alua~ion 

3.50% 
2.63% 
1.01% 

.86% 

.52% 

.47% 

.46% 

.38% 

.35% 

.29% 

$TL922j690 k 10.47% 



Assessed Valuations: 
Taxable assessed value 
Add back: exem pt property 

Total assessed value 

Legal debt m argin: 
Debt lim itation-35 percent 
of total assessed value 

ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Com putation of Legal Debt Margin 
June 30, 1999 

(Unaudited) 

Debt applicable to lim itation: 
Total general obligation 
bonded debt $120,230,000 

Less: Amount available 
for repaym ent of general 
obligation bonds _  8~10~246 

Total general obligation debt 
applicable to lim itation 

Legal debt m argin 
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]-abl# 7 

$435,375,900 
308,640,221 

$74~ 3& 12_! 

$260,405,642 

112.121.754 

$148j283,888 



Fiscal 
Year 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

Num ber of 
Students 

26.656 
27.523 
28,522 
29,282 
30,804 
31,412 
31.852 
32.677 
32.559 
32.567 

State 
Suppod(1) 

$65.236.164 
58.774.488 
64.480.323 
67.606,305 
74.732,474 
83.704,980 
87,141.280 
98,043.602 
107.633.632 
115.251.077 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

State Support end Local Support 
Per Student 

Last "fen Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

State Total 
Support per Student 
$'iudem E xp e~ !Jtu r#~(l) 

$2,072 
2,135 
2,261 
2,343 
2,450 
2,665 
2,736 
3,000 
3,308 
3,539 

(1) Consists of General Fund and Special Revenue Funds 
Effective fiscal year 1991, the School Food 
Service Special Revenue Fund is included. 

$95,393,407 
103,879,133 
113,913,754 
117,639,147 
128,290,620 
141,910,870 
150,924,250 
165,721,221 
181,031,180 
191,633.809 
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Total 
Cost per 
~tucJe.J~ 

$3.579 
3,774 
3,994 
4,017 
4.206 
4.518 
4.738 
5.071 
5.560 
5.884 

Local 
Suppo~(1) 

$37,580,748 
39,116,809 
40,901,507 
44,448,991 
49,726,002 
54,184,671 
61,056,129 
66,670,666 
72,555,734 
75.861.509 

Table 8 

Local 
Support per 
Student 

$1,410 
1,421 
1,434 
1,518 
1,630 
1,725 
1,917 
2,040 
2,228 
2,329 



Fiscal Number of 
Year ~ population[I) ~tudcnt~ 

ST TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Ratio of Net General Obligation Debt 
"[o Assessed Value and Net 

Bonded Debt per Capita and Per Student 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(lJnaudited) 

Percentage of 
Less Net Bonded Debt Net Bonded Net Bonded 

Assessed Gross Bonded Debt Service Net Bonded to Assessed Debt per Debt pe r 
V~Iu~2) P~ t(3) E ur~d{4J Debt Ya[ue Capita ~;tudcnt 

$437,003,606 
447,732,757 
460,607,545 
470,530,552 
502,661,478 
536,563,661 
577,055,816 
666,518,872 
721,100.184 
744.016.121 

(1) Source: Louisiana Technica l University 

(2) From "table 4 

338.145.000 
56,040.000 
49,255,000 
50,326,000 
66.260,000 
57.165.000 
53.693.000 
75.130.000 
70.655.000 
120,230.000 

(3) General obligation bonds 

(4) Amount available for repayment o1 general obligation bonds 
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$7,868,B07 
7,269,603 
2,822,642 
2,804,369 
2.743,366 
3,535,974 
4,762,929 
6,617,872 
8,450,210 
8,168,246 

$30,276,393 
46,770,397 
45.432,358 
47.515.631 
57.516.614 
53.628.025 
43,932.071 
68,512,128 
62,204,790 
112,121,754 

6,9 
10.9 
9.9 
10.1 
11.4 
10.0 
8.5 
10.3 
8.6 
15.1 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Percentage of Annual Debt Sen/ice Expenditures 
For General Bonded Debt to 

Total General Fund Expenditures 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year PrLn~p~] lnt~re~sJ 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

$5,250,000 
5,610,000 
6,785,090 
4,085,000 
3,710,000 
4,115,000 
4,975,000 
5,630,000 
6,215,000 
7,740,000 

$3,466,280 
3,724,922 
3,433,641 
4,020,050 
4,451,363 
4,664,815 
4,927,773 
5,532,069 
5,544,845 
5,964,317 

Total Debt 

$8,716,280 
9,334,922 
10,218,641 
8,085,050 
8,161,363 
8,779,815 
9,902,773 
11,162,069 
11,759,845 
13,704,317 
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Table 10 

Percentage of 
Total Debt Service 

General Fund to General Fund 
E~4)eAdJt u r e~ ExpendLtur~  

$85,262,795 
93,755,207 
102,884,530 
105,566,426 
113,945,802 
126,546,790 
135,080,089 
149,160,412 
161,774,767 
171,789,801 

10.23% 
9.96% 
9.93% 
7.66% 
7.16% 
6.94% 
7.33% 
7.48% 
7.27% 
7.98% 



Jurisdiction 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Com putation of Direct and Overlapping General Bonded Debt 
June 30, 1999 
(Unaudited) 

Direct: 
St. Tam m any Parish 

School Board 
Overlapping: 

City of Abita Springs 
City of Covington 
City of M andeville 
City of Slidell 
Police Jury 

General 
Obligation 

Bonded Debt 
Qut~t~ndiog 

$120,230,000 

368,00C} 
5,475,000 
1,240,000 
13,460,000 
1,560.00(3 

Source: Respective governm ent entities 
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Percentage 
Applicable 

to 
Goy~r~m e~t 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

Am ount 
Applicable 

to 
Government 

$120,230,000 

368,000 
5,475,000 
1,240,000 
13,460,000 
1,560,000 

$142,333,000 



Fiscal 
Year Population{l) 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

149,340 
144,508 
148,137 
153,351 
155,990 
164,394 
170,321 
174,856 
180,692 
183,727 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Demographic Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Public Schools 

Total 
Number of Number of 
Stu~&nls Stu~+P.~ts 

30,425 
31,286 
32,476 
32,840 
34,640 
35,768 
36,772 
37,801 
37,903 
38,104 

1) Source: Louisiana Technical University 

26,656 
27,523 
28,522 
29,282 
30,504 
31,412 
31,852 
32,677 
32,559 
32.567 
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Percentage 
of Number of 
Students to 

T~t a L$~u~Leat~ 

87.6 
88.0 
87.8 
89.2 
88.1 
87.8 
86.6 
86.4 
85.9 
85.5 

Number of 
StU~eEtS 

3,769 
3,763 
3,954 
3,558 
4,136 
4,356 
4,920 
5,124 
5,344 
5.537 

Table 3[2 

Private Schools 
Percentage 
of Number of 
Students to 

TotaLStud~nts 

12.4 
12.0 
12.2 
10.8 
11.9 
12.2 
13.4 
13.6 
14.1 
14.5 



Calendar 
Year 

1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 

ST. TAM MANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Property Value and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Calendar Years 

(Unaudited) 

Estim ated 
Actual 

Property 
Value 

$4,096,819,860 
4,045,101,470 
4,158,034,513 
4,246,180,037 
4,534,965,530 
4,829,278,397 
5,201,903,433 
6,058,688,723 
6,552,878,573 
6,733.548,083 

(1) Consists of deposit liabilities of major banks 
and savings and loan institutions domiciled in 
St. Tam m any Parish. 

Source: Annual Report of the Office Of Financia 
Institutions, State of Louisiana. 

Note-Does not include construction because neither the 
parish nor the numerous m unicipal governing 
authorities m aintain this inform ation. 
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_Table 1:3 

Bank 

Depqsi~ 1~ 

$249,031,875 
260,475,000 
296,087,000 
302,235,000 
294,135,000 
288,612,000 
33,948,000 
37,082,000 
41,562,000 
71.012,000 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board Members 
For the Year Ended June 30,1999 

(Unaudited) 

Ray A. Alfred 
E. Roth Allen 
Edward J. Fielding, III (2) 
Robed: Broome (5) 
Donald L. Burris (6) 
Charles T. Harrell 

Elizabeth Heintz (5) 
Neal M . Hennegan 
Carmen Johnson (4) 
John C. Lam arque, President 
M ary K. Lynch-Bellisario 
Jam es Panks 
Diane Sambola (5) 
Gregory J. Saurage (2) 
Albert R. Smith (3) 
Anthony J. Tedesco (2) 
Betty Verzwyvelt (1) 
Donald J. Villere 
Patti Young 
Daniel G . Zecheneny 

(1) Served July 1, 1998 to October 31, 1998 
(2) Served July 1, 1998 to December 31, 1998 
(3) Served July 1, 1998 to June 13, 1999 
(4) Served November 5, 1998 to June 30, 1999 
(5) Served January 1, 1999 to June 30, 1999 
(6) Served June 22, 1999 to June 30, 1999 

The Schedule of Com pensation Paid to Board M em bers was prepared in 
com pliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session 
of the Louisiana Legislature. The com pensation of the School Board 
m em bers is included in the general adm inistrative expenditures of the 
General Fund. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statue 17:56, the 
School Board m em bers have elected the m onthly paym ent m ethod of 
com pensation. Under this m ethod, each m em ber of the School Board 
receives $800 per month and the President receives $900 per month for 
perform ing the duties of his office. 
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Tabl~ 14 

$9,600 
9,600 
4,800 
4,800 
258 

9,600 
4,800 
9,600 
6,293 
10,800 
9,600 
9,600 
4,800 
4,800 
9,127 
4,800 
3,200 
9,600 
9,600 
%600 

$144,818 



DEGREE 

Bachelor's Degree 
M aster's Degree 
Master's + 30 
Education Specialist 
Doctorate 

Totals: 

YEABS~3E_ EXEERIENCE 

0-5 
6-10 
11-14 
15-19 
20-24 
25-over 

Totals 

Year of incorporation 
Form of governm ent: 
Area of parish: 
Regular School Days 
Population: 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

NUMBER OF SCHQOLS 

Elem entary 
M iddle 
Junior 
Senior 

23 
8 
14 
7 

52 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data 
June 30, 1999 
(Unaudited) 

1,280 
814 
300 
27 
10 

531 
446 
297 
404 
382 
371 

Table 15 

52.7 
33.5 
12.3 
1.1 
0.4 

21.8 
18.4 
12.2 
16.6 
15.7 
15.3 

2,431 1.00.0% 

1900 
School Board President 
1,141 squa~ m iles 
182 
183.727 

]1.33 

IElem entary 
M iddle 
Junior 
Senior 

ENROLLMENT 

10,471 
4,734 
7,922 
9,460 

32,587 



 



 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square 
New Orleans, LA 70139 3599 

REPO RT O N CO M PLIANCE AND O N INTERNAL CO NTRO L O VER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED O N AN AUDIT O F FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
PERFORM ED IN ACCORDANCE W ITH GO VERNM EN TA UDITIN G STANDARD S 

The M em bers of the 
St. Tam m any Parish School Board 

Covington, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the general purpose financial statements of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School 
Board), as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 
1999. W e conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards', issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. 

Co01pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's general purpose financial 
statem ents are free of m aterial m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its com pliance w ith certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determ ination of financial statem ent amounts. However, providing an opinion on com pliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncom pliance that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards, 

nternal Control O ver Financial Reoortin~ 

In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our 
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all m atters in the 
internal control over financial reporting that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a 
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce 
to a relatively low level the risk that m isstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the 
financial statem ents being audited m ay occur and not be detected w ithin a tim ely period by employees in the 
norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal control 
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be m aterial w eaknesses. However, we noted 
other m atters involving tbe internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to m anagement of 
the School Board in a separate letter dated October 25, 1999. 
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Suile 3500 One Shell Square 
New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

REPORT ON COM PLIANCE W ITH REQUIREM ENTS APPLICABLE TO 
EACH M AJOR PROGRAM  AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COM PLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE W ITH OM B CIRCULAR A-133 

The M em bers of the 
St. Tammany Parish School Board 

Covington, Louisiana: 

Com Dliaoee 

W e have audited the compliance of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board), with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
1999. The School Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section 
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Com pliance w ith the requirem ents of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of School 
Board's m anagem ent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the School Board's com pliance based 
on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Complroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Ncm-Prctfit Organizations. Those standards and OM B Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whelher noncom pliance w ith tile types of com pliance 
reqtfirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence about the School Board's com pliance w ith 
those requirem ents and perform ing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum stances. 
W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determ ination on lhe School Board's com pliance w ith those requirem ents. 

In out" opinion, the School Board com plied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. 

erna) Control O ver Com oliance 

The m anagem ent of the School Board is responsible for establishing and m aintaining effective internal 
control over cmnpliance w ith requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
program s. In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to 
tcst and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OM B Circular A-133. 
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all m atters in the 
internal control that m ight be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design 
or operation of one or m ore of the internal control com ponents does not reduce to a relatively low level the 
risk that noncom pliance with applicable requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would 
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a 
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. W e noted no 
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

Schedule of Exoenditures of Federal Awards 

W e have audited the general purpose financial statements of the School Board as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 1999. Our audit was performed for the 
purpose of form ing an opinion on the general purpose financial statem ents taken as a whole. The 
accom panying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by OM B Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose 
financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all m aterial respects, in relation to the general 
purpose financial statem ents taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of the Board, the School Board's m anagem ent and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana and Legislative Auditor's 
Office and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

October 25, 1999 
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Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor/ 
P_rogr~mJ~  

Passed Through Louisiana Department 
of Agriculture: 
Food Distribution Program 

Passed Through Louisiana Department 
of Education: 
School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON. LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Total United States Department Of Agriculture 

Direct Program-School Assistance in 
Federally Affected Areas- 
Maintenance & Operation (PL81-974 

Pass Through 
Grantor 

C.F~  Number Award Number .~ 13~  

10.550 NONE $652,865 

10.553 
10.555 

NONE 
NONE 

938,432 
3,098,051 

4,6~9,;tA~ 

84.041 28-LA-96 11,2E8 

Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education: 
Adult Education-State Administered 
Program 84.062 NONE 12.8~0 

mproving America's School Act (IASA): 
Title I: Helping Disadvantaged 
Children Meet High Standards 

Title I1: Dwight D. Eisenhower 
Professional Development Program 

Title IV: Safe and Drug Free 
School end Comm unities 

Title Vl: Innovative Education 
Program Strategies 

Total IASA 

Individuals with Disabilities 
Educatien Act (IDEA): 
Part B-Regular Education 
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84.010 
84.010 
84.010 
84.010 
84.010 
84.216 
84.010 

84.281 
84.281 
64.281 
84.281 

84.t86A 
84.186A 
84.186A 
84.186A 

84.298 
84.298 
84.298 
84.298 

84.027 
84.027 
84.027 

99-1ASA-52-1 
99-1ASA-52-C 
98-1ASA-52-1 
98-1ASA-52C/O 
97-1ASA-52C/O 
98 Capital 
School Support 

99-1ASA-52-2 
98-1ASA-52-2 
98-1ASA-52-2C/O 
97-1ASA-52-2C/O 

99-1ASA-52-4 
98-1ASA-52-4 
98-70-52-DC 
97-1ASA-52-4C/O 

99-1ASA-52-6 
98-1ASA-52-6 
98-1ASA-52-6C/O 
97-1ASA-52-6C/O 

99-1B-52-S 
98-B8-52-S-C 
98-FT-52 

3,655,227 
53,684 
76,091 
159,969 
8,480 
1,096 
2,277 

3.956.624 

124,781 
1,075 
24,951 

85 
150,892 

203,724 
716 

51,399 
1,114 

256.953 

170,313 
1,031 
17,640 
1,529 

190,513 
4,555.182 

1,926,431 
24,451 
189,149 

2.140103~ 



Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor/ 
Prograrn~ 8~~ 

Preschool Education 

Part H-Infant/foddler 

Total IDEA 

Voce tiona] Education: 
Basic Grants to States 
Single Parent 

Goals 2000-Educate America Act (EAA 
Education Systemic ~mprovement 

Literacy Challenge 

Total United States Department of Education 

G~DA ~ r 

84.173 
84,173 

84,181 
84.181 

84.048 
84.048A 

84,276 

84.318X 

United Stetes_Departm~~'~_o~ L~bar 
Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education. 
Passed Through Delgado Community College: 
School 1o W ork '~7.24g 

Passed Through Louisiana Technical College - 
Sullivan Campus: School to W ork 17.249 

Total United States Department of Labor 

CorporatioJ~for.N a tional and C o r'~33 uoit y~.'~ w~,~ 
Passed Through Louisiana's Office 
of the Lieutenant Governor: 
Learn and Serve America 

Pass Through 
Grantor 

Award Number 

99-1P-52-S 
98-PF-52 

98~H3-52-SC/O 
97-CIT3-52 

99-VE-52-2B/BG 
99-VE-52-2SP 

99-LI-52-L 

99TLCFPD-52-F 

NONE 

NONE 

94.004 HS'IW  

~chedule 40 

~ExJ:,eodJtu~S 

$192.764 
6.231  

~98,995 

2.224 
6.220 
8,444 

2.347~470 

234,675 
21.144 
255,81~ 

226.9~  

~45,374 

7.554.957 

2.924 

11~397 

120.321 

~4.605 

National Science  Foundalion 
Direct Program - Presidential Award for Excellence 
in Science and Mathematics Teaching 47.066 ESt-9708786 8.5'17 

United States Department el Hearth aodJdl.Lman DeveJopJ'aent 
Passed Through the Louisiana Department of Education: 
Starting Points Program 93.037 

United States Department of Defen=e 
Air Force - JROTC 
Army - JROTC 
M arines - J P, OTC 
Navy - JROTC 

Total United States Department of Defense 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards 
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NONE 
NONE 
NONE 
NONE 

CFMS533866 

NONE 
NONE 
NONE 
NONE 

87,85~ 

55,496 
62,913 
33.903 

281A96 

Sj 2.Z~2..1~  



1. G_ene ral 

St. Tam m any Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
June 30. 1999 

The accom panying Schedule of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal 
awards programs of the St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board). The 
School Board reporting entity is defined in note 1 to the general purpose financial 
statem ents for the year ended June 30, 1999. All federal awards received directly from 
federal agencies is included on the schedule as well as federal awards passed through 
other government agencies. The following programs are considered major federal 
program s of the School Board: IASA Title I, IDEA Part B, USDA Com m odities-Food 
Distribution. and National School Lunch and School Breakfast. 

2. Basis of Accountinq 

Schedule of Federal Awards is presented using the m odified accrual basis of 
accounting, which is described in note 1 to the School Board's general purpose 
financial statem ents for the year ended June 30, 1999. Com modities received, 
which are non-cash revenue are valued at prices provided by the U.S. Departm ent of 
Agriculture. Any received but unused com m odities are recorded as deferred revenue 
until used. 

3. RelationshiD to G eneral Purpose Financial Statem ents 

Federal award revenues are reported in the School Board's general purpose financia 
statem ents as follows: 

From Federal Sources 

G eneral Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 

Tota 

4. RelationshiD to Federal Financial Reports 

$305,664 
12.451.436 

Am ounts reported in the Schedule of Federal Awards agree with the am ounts reported 
in the related federal financial reports, except for the am ounts in reports subm itted 
as of a date subsequent to June 30, 1999, which will differ from the schedule by the 
am ount of encum brances as of June 30, 1999, liquidated to the dates of the reports. 
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ST. TAM M ANY PARISH SCH O O l_, BO ARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

( I ) _Sumnlary of Auditors' Res 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30. 1999 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(t") 

Schedule 41 

The type of report issued on the general purpose financial statements: unqualified opinion 

Reportable 
Statements 

conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the Financial 
M aterial weaknesses: no 

Noncompliance which is material to the general purpose financial statements: no  

Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs: none reported Material 
weaknesses: no 

The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified opinion 

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section. 510(a) of OMB Circular 
A-133: no 

(g) Major program 

United States Departm ent of Education: 
hnproving America's School Act (IASA) (CFDA Number 84.010) 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $382,713 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section.530 of OM B Circular A-133: .y~  

(2) Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 
N one 

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs relating to Federal Awards: None 
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Suite 3500 One Shell Square 

New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

CO N FIDENTIAL 

October 25. 1999 

M embers of the St. Tammany Parish School Board 
St. Tam m any Parish School Board 
212 W est 17th A venue 
Covington, Louisiana 70439-0940 

Dear M em bers of the Board 

- . .'-:1 

W e have audited the financial statements of the St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board) for the 
year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 1999. In planning and 
perform ing our audit of the financial statements of the School Board, we considered the School Board's 
internal control in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statem ents and not to provide assurance on internal control. W e have not considered intern al 
control since the date of our report. 

During out attdit we noted a matter involving a recommendation that is presented for your consideration. 

This com m ent and recom mendation, which has been discussed with the appropriate members of 
m anagement, is intended to im prove internal controls or result in other operating efficiencies and is 
sum m arized as follow s: 

Reporting M odel Changes 

A fter years of study and consideration of the needs of users of government financial statements
, the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued its revolutionary new reporting model in June 
1999. The new model dramatically changes the presentation of govern ments' external financial statements. 
In the GASB's view, the objective of the new model is to enhance the clarity and usefulness of government 
financial statem ents to the citizenry, oversight bodies, investors and creditors. It will substantially affect the 
Board's financial data accum ulation and financial statement presentation processes. Some of the key aspects 
of the changes follow : 

M auagement's Discussion and Analysis (M D&A) -- A comprehensive M D&A will now be included as 
required supplementary inform ation. The M D&A will introduce the financial statements by presenting 
an analysis of the govern ment's financial perform ance for the year and its financial position at year-end. 

The M I)& A w ill be in addition to the transm ittal letter currently required for Government Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA) award candidates, such as your School Board, but we expect that the 



M embers of the St. Tam many Parish School Board 
St. Tamm any Parish School Board 
October 25. 1999 
Page 2 

GFOA will m ake chan ges in their requirem ents so as to avoid any duplication between the two 
docum ents. 

Statement ofAclivities - Governments will now be required to use a "'net program cost" format for the 
entity-wide statements instead of a traditional operating statement. This new format groups revenues and 
expenses by functional categories (such as public safety, public works, etc.). The purpose of the new 
statem ent is to inform readers about the cost of spe cific functions and the extent to which they are 
financed with program revenues or general revenues of the government (such as tax revenues). 
Governments will have the option of reporting both direct and indirect program costs. 

Capital Contributions- Capital contributions to enterp rise funds would be reported as nonoperating 
revenues (rather than direct additions to equity); governments would no longer report contributed capital 
equity accounts. This change would recognize all contributed resources-including grants, tap fees. and 
developer contributions-consistently in enterp rise fund operating statements. It also would elim inate the 
confusion caused by reporting negative retained earnings (offset) by large contributed capital balances, 

The effective date of the new pronouncement will require im plementation by the School Board for its year 
ending June 30, 2002. The magnitude of these changes and the time required to prepare for im plementation 
should not be underestimated. W e recom m end that the School Board begin to look at its system s and 
processes to ensure that the required inform ation w ill be  available to ensure tim ely implem entation. W e 
recommend that the School Board consider the cost of required changes to its systems and processes to 
ensure availability of necessary funds in its upcoming budget and also consider identifying training program s 
for key staff members to attend. 

Our audit procedures are designed prim arily to enable us to form  an opinion on the financial statem ents and, 
therefore, m ay not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures that m ay exist. W e aim . however, 
to use our knowledge of the School Board's organization gained during our work to m ake com m ents and 
suggestions that we hope will be useful to you. The attached Appendix A contains the status of the prior 
year's recom mendations an d Appendix B contains m anagement's response to the current year com ments. 
W e would be pleased to discuss these com ments and recom m endations with you at any time. 

This report is intended for the inform ation of the Board, the School Board's management and federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana. However, this report is a m atter 
of public record and its distribution is not lim ited. 

Very truly yours 



STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR COM M ENTS 

a r 

Inform ation System s Policies, Standards and Procedures Should Be Form alized 

Appendix A 

Information System s policies, standards, and procedures have not been form alized and approved by School 
Board management. Form alized guidelines convey the intentions of management and application owners as 
well as provide guidance and prom ote unifornfity related to intern al controls. In addition, formalized 
guidelines will help to ensure the continuity of the computer environm ent during the transition of Inform ation 
Systems personnel and software modifications. 

School Board Inform ation System s m anageme nt should consider form alizing policies, standards, and 
procedures for the payroll system that address the following; 

~ A policy statem ent that m akes conform ity to the standards m andatory, 
~ A policy statement outlining m anagement's position on inform ation security, 
~ Program m odification procedures which provide reasonable assurance that changes to the production 

computer environment are performed in a controlled manner and approved by m anagement, 
~ Proc edures for testing program m od ifications, 
~ Standards for creating payroll application technical documentation, 
~ Procedures for m igrating new and m odified program s from developm ent to production status, and 
~ Procedures for making emergency program modifications. 

Policies and Procedures G overning Payroll Security Adm inistration Should Be Docum ented 

Various policies, standards, and proc edures, such as the daily backup of the payroll application, are not 
documented. Formalized guidelines convey the intentions of management and application owners as well as 
provide gu idance and promote uniform ity related to internal controls. In addition, form alized guidelines will 
help to ensure the continuity of the com puter en','ironm ent during the transition of departm ent personnel. 

M anagement should consider documenting policies, standards, and procedures that address the following 

Daily file backups and off-sile storage rotation. 
Requirements to request and support system program updates and data m odifications procedures which 
provide reasonable assurance that changes m ade to the production environment are perform ed in a 
controlled m anner and approved by m anagen~ent, and 
Procedures for computer operations. 

In addition, policies govern ing the payroll security adm inistration have not been doc um ented and form ally 
approved by School Board m anageme nt. At a m inimum , form alized security adm inistration duties and 
proc edures should be  documented to address the following: 

~ Responsibilities and duties of tile payroll system users, 
~ Procedures for assigning user.lD 's and passwords, 
~ Proc edures for the periodic change of user passwords, 
~ Proc edures for assigning transaction execution capabilities, 
~ Proc edures for eliminating term inated or transferred employee computer access 



Physical Security 

Physical access is one type of control that protects the computer room from such risks as 

Appendix A 

~ Destruction of physical assets or information 
~ Interruption of com puting services 
~ The rem oval of physical assets or inform ation 

At the present time, access to the compt~ter room is not physically restricted during business hours. Access to 

the computer room is normally limited to computer operations personnel. 

School Board Information Systems management should consider locking the computer room door at all 
times. Locking the computer room door during the day to lim it access will help to ensure an efficient 
processing flow, and will also assist in protecting the equipment room from damage or loss of inform ation. 

Business Covttinuity Plan / Disaster Recovery Plan 

User Rec~ P_ lanning 

The School Board is dependent upon the Inform ation System department's ability to deliver uninterrupted 
computing services. However, a complete contingency plan that would help ensure a timely recovery from 
either a temporary or catastrophic interruption has not been form ally developed or tested. 

The School Board user m anagen~ent sh~3uld consider developing a formal Business Continuity plan {BCP) 
and once completed, test the plan on a recurring basis. The plan should include a course of action for either 
partial or complete disruption of data prOCessing services. The following areas should be addressed: 

~ Identifies and evaluates business risk. 
~ Identifies Critical Business Functions (those which, if inoperable for specific periods of time, would have 

a detrimental impact on the company's ability to function). 
~ Identifies specific support requirements which m ust be available to maintain such Critical Business 

Functions. 
~ identifies and evaluates the alternatives available to address the recovery, requirements of each of the 

Critical Business Functions. 
~ DOC uu~em s the detailed plan (critical functions and organization-wide), associated responsibilities and 

proc edures to be  followed in the event of an outage which impacts any or all of the Critical Business 

Functions. 
~ Establishes responsibilities and procedures for the implementation, maintenance, and periodic testing of 

the established plan(s). 
~ Establishes responsibilities and procedures for the periodic review of the BCP to ensure the testing and 

maintenance expectations are being followed and that the overall plan continues to address the 

Com pany' s Business Continua, t)' ~eeds. 

User departments which perform functions that have been determ ined to be critical to the ongoing operation 
of the School Board payroll operations should develop and test a BCP. Each of these user departments, along 
with a Information Systems Disaster Recovery Plan, should be  integrated into a School Board-wide BCP. 



Appendix A 

The School Board user management should establish responsibilities, procedures and time frames for the 
implementation, maintenance and periodic testing of the plan to assure that the overall plan continues to 
address the Business Continuity needs. The plan should be available to key managem ent personnel. 

nforn~ation S'~,stems Recover~ Plannin~ 

The School Board application user departments are dependent upon the ability to access computing services 
for the payroll system . However, a contingency plan that would help ensure a timely recovery from a 
computer processing interruption has not been developed and tested. W hile the School Board Information 
Systems management has developed a Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP), the plan should be available to key 
management and key elements of the plan should be comm unicated to uppe r management an d Finance 
personnel to ensure that they are better prepared should a disaster occur. 

Prior Year Status: All item s concerning Data Proc essing are be ing addressed, A com m ittee consisting of 
the Personnel Director, Director of Business Affairs, Director of Accounting Services, lmem al Auditor, 
Director of Data Processing and the Assistant Director of Data Processing meet every other week to discuss 
these item s. Some have been corrected. Actions on the other item s are still in progress and arc scheduled for 
future corrections. 

Current Year Status: School Board's Status for Autom ated Payroll System Accounting Control 
Com m ents and Autom ated Payroll System and O ther M IS Com m ents: This shall rem ain the sam e 
except for the following: 

l)ue to form ing a Y2K Com m ittee to prepare the school system for Y2K, the com m ittee m eetings have 
been suspended until after the first of the year at which tim e the com m ittee will begin to m eet again. 
Since there are so m any issues we are looking at, the purchasing of a processed based software system 
should correct m ost of these item s. 



M anagem ent's Response to the Current Year Com m ents 

Reporting M odel Changes 

A ppendix B 

After years of stud)' and consideration of the needs of users of govern ment financial statements, the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued its revolutionary new reporling model in June 
1999. The new model dramatically changes the presentation of governments" extern al financial statements. 

In the GASB's view, the objective of the new model is to enhance the clarity and usefulness of government 
financial statements to the citizenry , oversight bodies, investors and creditors. It will substantially affect the 
Board's financial data accumulation and financial statement presentation processes. Some of the key aspects 
of the changes follow : 

M anagement's Discussion and Analysis (M D&A) - A comprehensive M D&A will now be included as 
required supplementary information. The M D&A will introduce the financial statenlents by presenting 
an analysis of the government's financial performance for the year and its financial position at year-end. 
The M D&A will be in addition to the transm ittal letter currently required for Govern m ent Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA) av.'ard candidates, such as your School Board. but we expect that the 
G FOA w ill m ake changes in their requirem ents so as to avoid any duplication be tween the two 
documents. 

Stalemctlt of Activities - (3overnnlents will now be required to use a "net program cost" fornlat for the 
entity-wide statem ents instead of a traditional operating statement. This new forn mt groups revenues and 
expenses by functional categories (such as public safety, public works, etc,). The purpose of the new 
statement is to inform readers about the cost of specific functions and the extent to which they are 
financed '~ith progranl revenues or general revenues of the govern ment (such as tax revenues), 
Governm ents will have the option of reporting both direct and indirect program costs. 

Capital Contributions - Capital contributions to enterprise funds would be reported as nonoperating 
revenues (rather than direct additions to equity); governments would no longer report contributed capital 
equity accounts. This change would recognize all contributed resources-including grants, tap fees, and 
developer contributions-consistently in enterprise fund operating statements. It also would elim inate the 
confusion caused by reporting negative retained earn ings (offset) by large contributed capital balances. 

The effective date of the new pronouncement will require implementation by the School Board for its }ear 
ending June 30, 2002. The nmgnitude of these changes and the time required to prepare for implementation 
should not be underestimated. W e recom mend that the School Board begin to look at its system s and 
processes "to ensure "that the required inform a.tion will be available "to e~sure .tim ely im plere, en.tati~n. ~'e 
recom mend that the School Board consider the cost of required changes to its system s and processes to 
ensure availability of necessary funds in its upcom ing budget and also consider identifying training programs 
for key staff members to attend. 

M anagem enl Response Com m ent: The Finance Departm ent u'ill address the reporting m odel changes, 
GASB Statem ent #34. by having all accounting staff personnel attend educational program s. Also, '~e 
are searching for ne*~ software from a third party that v~-ill incorporate processed based software. 
This software will enable us to m aintain records in a ~'ariety of "mays. 


